
-----Original Message-----
From: Ken Alker <ken@alker.net>
Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2023 10:18 AM
To: McDougall, Paul@HCD <Paul.McDougall@hcd.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: City of Goleta - quick question before 5pm

Hi Paul,

I have asked City of Goleta city council to go back to the 284 units that was originally voted on in a straw vote for
Kenwood Village rezoning, rather than having the 190 unit cap that they landed upon.  A council member asked me
if this would slow down the Housing Element approval process since it would introduce a change from what staff
submitted to HCD and what was "blessed" by HCD recently.  My assumption is that changing from 190 units to 284
would be a good thing in HCD's eyes and would not slow things down, but staff told Planning Commission that any
changes, even if they seem on the surface to be something HCD would approve, are risky as staff doesn't know how
HCD will view the change.

I don't think City Council will vote to change back to 284 units (eliminate the 190 unit cap) if they feel there is any
chance HCD would then reject their submittal.  Is there any way to find out if eliminating the 190 unit cap on
Kenwood Village would be approved by HCD so that when City Council votes at the beginning of December, they
could be informed if this would cause HCD to kick back the Housing Element or if this change would be considered
OK?

Thank you!

If you available for a phone call, I am at 805/685-2030.

Ken Alker

--On Thursday, November 16, 2023 9:48 AM -0800 Ken Alker <ken@alker.net>
wrote:

> Hi,
>
> Hoping you got the below.  I am still hoping to chat with you about my
> project.  Are you available this week?
>
> Thank you,
> Ken Alker
>
> --On Monday, November 13, 2023 11:12 AM -0800 Ken Alker
> <ken@alker.net>
> wrote:
>
>> The City of Goleta is having a Planning Commission (PC) meeting tonight.
>> In the last letter I wrote, I pointed out that the proposed limit of
>> 190 units on my 9.85 acres would create a conflict with the minimum
>> of 20 units/acre since 9.85 acres x 20 units/acre >190 units.  Staff
>> is now recommending that PC limit developable acreage from 9.85 to



>> 6.63.  They backed into the 6.63 acres this by dividing 190 units by 30units/acre.
>> This means I'll not only be limited in number of units, but massing
>> will have to increase to fit the units into the 6.63 acres instead of
>> 9.85 acres.  There is also the possibility that this will force me to
>> build less than the maximum number of units (massing/neighborhood issues/cost).
>> I'm glad the city is finally rezoning, but I am frustrated by this
>> arbitrary maximum and now reducing buildable area to make the min/max
>> math work (not a good reason to reduce the buildable area).  I know
>> they are very concerned about changing the maximum since getting the
>> straw votes and going through all the public comment and HCD
>> processes, but limiting developable area is now going to affect the
>> neighborhood in a negative way just to make the numbers work.  There
>> must be other ways this could be accomplished if the City won't go
>> back to the 284 maximum that was originally proposed by staff.
>>
>> Is there anything the HCD could do to help?
>>
>> Are you available for a phone call?  I am at 805/685-2030.
>>
>> Thank you.
>> Sincerely,
>> Ken Alker
>>
>> --On Tuesday, October 10, 2023 12:27 AM +0000 "McDougall, Paul@HCD"
>> <Paul.McDougall@hcd.ca.gov> wrote:
>>
>>> Yes and I am sure I can make sense of it; thanks Ken.
>>>
>>> -----Original Message-----
>>> From: Ken Alker <ken@alker.net>
>>> Sent: Monday, October 9, 2023 5:26 PM
>>> To: McDougall, Paul@HCD <Paul.McDougall@hcd.ca.gov>
>>> Subject: RE: City of Goleta - quick question before 5pm
>>>
>>> Thanks for the quick response, Paul!
>>>
>>> I wish I'd had more time to write my letter to the City, but I ran
>>> out of time so it isn't the quality I usually try to produce; very
>>> wordy and not concise.  I'm attaching it for you so you can see what
>>> I'm up against. There is a 16-year history behind this project.
>>> When I bought the land, the City asked if I could handle waiting
>>> through a 2-year process to get my permits, and here we are at year
>>> 16.  It feels like nearly every council has done everything in their
>>> power to prevent me from building. My goal has been to build homes
>>> for my employees.  I'm an electrical engineer and own a company in
>>> town.  I'm NOT a developer and have never done this before.
>>>
>>> Are you the one reviewing the Housing Element that the City of
>>> Goleta keeps trying to get approved?
>>>
>>> I'm hoping the letter makes sense to you.  Would you be willing to
>>> discuss over the phone?
>>>
>>> Thanks!
>>> Ken
>>> (805) 685-2030
>>>



>>> --On Monday, October 9, 2023 10:29 PM +0000 "McDougall, Paul@HCD"
>>> <Paul.McDougall@hcd.ca.gov> wrote:
>>>
>>>> Just generally; if there is a rezone for a shortfall of lower
>>>> income RHNA, a by right requirement is triggered that includes a
>>>> minimum density of 16 or 20 units per acre. For Goleta, it is 20
>>>> units per acre. We generally see where a minimum is the same as the
>>>> maximum as a constraint because, among other things, it provides a
>>>> narrow/precise range that does not allow flexibility for proposals.
>>>> We generally would still see that density bonus law still applies
>>>> too regardless of the cap. I have to look about intersections with
>>>> SB 330 related to caps.
>>>>
>>>> -----Original Message-----
>>>> From: Ken Alker <ken@alker.net>
>>>> Sent: Monday, October 9, 2023 1:54 PM
>>>> To: McDougall, Paul@HCD <Paul.McDougall@hcd.ca.gov>
>>>> Subject: City of Goleta - quick question before 5pm
>>>>
>>>> Hi Paul,
>>>>
>>>> I am trying to get a letter to the City of Goleta by 5pm; sorry for
>>>> the urgency.
>>>>
>>>> I am Ken Alker.  I own 10 vacant acres of infill in Goleta that
>>>> I've had slated for development for nearly SIXTEEN years now.  In
>>>> July, the City did a unanimous straw vote to change zoning on my
>>>> property to RH
>>>> (20-30
>>>> units/acre) or almost 300 units (284 to be exact) after 16 years of
>>>> trying to get it built (only because they are being "forced by the
>>>> state").  After the neighbors came out and complained, the City
>>>> chose to place an arbitrary cap of 190 units on the project so they
>>>> could still meet the RHNA but limit the project to the minimum
>>>> number of units under their RH zoning (20/acre).  Mine is the ONLY
>>>> parcel with this cap that is be rezoned.  Now I'm stuck with 190
>>>> units (no more, no less, and no flexibility).  Does the HCD see
>>>> this is reasonable, or disingenuous?
>>>>
>>>> If you can call to chat, I'd greatly appreciate your time.  I'm at
>>>> (805)
>>>> 685-2030 or (805) 968-1000.
>>>>
>>>> Thank you!
>>>> Sincerely,
>>>> Ken Alker
>>>
>>>
>>>
>>
>>
>>
>
>
>





From: Sue Woodill <suewoodill@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 23, 2023 2:52 PM
To: Andy Newkirk <anewkirk@cityofgoleta.org>
Subject: Rezoning of Kenwood Village

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

I have lived in the Brandon neighborhood since 1970.  Calle Real has been a dangerous street all that
time.  During the Eagle Canyon fire in 1979 evacuation from the neighborhood was severely
impacted by traffic backups on Calle Real.  I quit riding my bike to work at UCSB because of the
danger of riding on Calle Real.  In the event of a need to evacuate the neighborhood  the increased
density will severely impact Calle Real.  Now that the funds for the new overpass have been
committed elsewhere the impact will be even more severe.  If any kind of senior housing is built here
it will be almost impossible to get vehicles in to evacuate anyone while everyone is trying to get out. 
We don't need another Santa Rosa disaster. 

In the event of an earthquake it is entirely possible the overpasses will be unusable leaving the only 
emergency services to come from Los Carneros.  Response times will be totally unacceptable.  

In the event that proposed housing is built on Glen Annie golf course as well as the Kenwood Village
property the entire neighborhood will be severely impacted in any emergency situation.  The use of
Cathedral Oaks can not be assured because once again the funding to fix the crib wall has been
redirected elsewhere.
The new fire station proposed at Hollister and 101 will also be overpass dependent.  Where will
emergency services come from?

Development without corresponding expansion of emergency services in such an earthquake and
fire prone area is unconscionable.  All development requires developed infrastructure to support it. 
Goleta had already ignored critical maintenance on its infrastructure in this neighborhood.  



From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 1:39 PM
To: Deborah Lopez <dlopez@cityofgoleta.org>; Anne Wells <awells@cityofgoleta.org>; Andy
Newkirk <anewkirk@cityofgoleta.org>; ken@impulse.net; tristan.lanza@hcd.ca.gov
Cc: Jennifer Fullerton <jfullerton@cityofgoleta.org>; kmaynard@cityofgolta.org; Anne Miller
<amiller@cityofgoleta.org>; Jason Chapman <jchapman@cityofgoleta.org>; aprilrid@live.om
Subject: Goleta, CA- Kenwood Village and misstatements by property owner

PART 1

I WILL NEED TO SEND THIS E-MAIL IN PARTS SINCE IT IS TOO LONG FOR MY COMPUTER TO
SEND IN ONE E-MAIL AND I CAN ALSO ONLY SEND A FEW ATTACHMENTS AT A TIME.  I WILL
SEND THE ATTACHMENTS AFTER TE ENTIRE E-MAIL SO THEY ARE KEPT IN ORDER.

Dear City Council and Planning Commission:

This e-mail is written in response to the inaccuracies in the November 16, 2023 letter from
Fred Tan, Deputy Fire Marshal, as well as the misstatements/inaccuracies in both the written
statements made by Ken Alder, the owner of Kenwood Village, in his letter dated November 9,
2023 and his verbal statements during the November 17, 2023 Planning Commission meeting.
 Please be advised that I was not able to write down everything Mr. Alker stated at the
meeting, so please do not take the fact that I may have missed responding to some of his
inaccurate statements as a sign that I agree with his comments, which I do not.  Further, since
this e-mail is getting long and I am still waiting for additional documentation, I will address
some of the issues in my next e-mail.  I am sorry it took so long to respond, but I was waiting
for documentation and clarification from other people before I responded.

In the past, I have taken care to only refer to Mr. Alker as the “property owner” when making
my truthful statements about him, his misstatements and his conduct.  However, Mr. Alker



recently had an article published in the Independent which states, “I’m writing to correct
multiple false statements made about my project in a letter from my neighbor, Ms. April
Reid.”  Since he has defamed me and he used my actual name in public, I no longer feel the
need to use the term “property owner”.  I will now use Ken Alker’s full name in both verbal
and  written statements, including any articles published in the newspaper.

Further, Mr. Alker pretends that we are “neighbors.”  We are NOT neighbors as far as I know.
 I live on Baker Lane next to the monstrosity he wants to build on Kenwood Village, which he
named after himself.  Mr. Alker lives a safe way away in Winchester Canyon, so he will not
have to suffer the effects of what he is trying to force upon the actual people who live next to
Kenwood Village.

In Mr. Alker’s July 20, 2023 e-mail, he states, “I’m very excited and appreciative that my land
was selected for rezone to help Goleta meet its housing numbers set by the state and I’m just
as ready today to get a project off the ground as I was 16 years ago.”  I have repeatedly asked
the staff to tell me who selected this property for rezoning and when it was selected for
rezoning?  It was clearly “chosen” and agreed to by Mr. Alker BEFORE the rezoning/upzoning
was announced to the public on July 14, 2023 without any input from the public until after
things were settled/resolved with the Mr. Alker.  Councilmember Kasdin stated regarding any
agreements with the property owners, “As for an agreement, all staff can do is encourage the
landowners to seek a project that is 20-30 units per acre.  They needed to get letters from the
landowner indicating that the landowner wanted the project.”  I previously submitted a copy
of Councilmember Kasdin’s e-mail. I did a FOIA request a long time ago for the letters/e-
mails/communications that the City Council claims the HCD required of the property owners
before the HCD would approve each property. To date, I have not received anything.  Mr.
Alker claims he never signed a “letter”.  On November 16, 2023, I asked Councilmember
Kasdin to clarify whether there were letters signed by the property owners.  Councilmeber
Kasdin responded, “The quick answer is that I don’t know.  My understanding is that HCD
insisted on an expression of the willingness of property owners to develop the properties
proposed for rezoning included in the housing element.  However, I don’t know if a verbal
expression was deemed adequate or if a written notice was needed.  I don’t believe that there
was anything formally signed, so any e-mail, for example, from a landowner would probably
suffice for HCD.”  I am submitting this e-mail from Councilmember Kasdin.  I have again e-
mailed the staff asking if there is anything signed by Mr. Alker reflecting his
willingness/agreement to build 20-30 units per acre on the property.  I still have not received a
response.  So, what is it, if anything, that HCD required from the property owners that the
staff conveyed to the property owners and the property owners agreed to before the rezoning
was announced to the public?  

If Mr. Alker is allowed to build, at this point, he can only build on about 6 plus acres at this
point anyway according to the City Council. If Mr. Alker really wants to be a good neighbor, as



he pretends, he could plan to build his monstrosity up against Calle Real and the apartments
on the other side of the Creek.  He could have the decency to leave the people living
peacefully on Baker Lane in suburban single family housing alone!!  But, I do not see him
looking out for the neighbors he pretends to be concerned about.

Also, regarding the article that was published under my name in The Independent on
November 15, 2023, I do stand by my statements!  However, the article that was published
was sent by me to the Independent as bullet points so the Independent could investigate and
write a second article about Kenwood Village with additional information.  I felt the first article
left written by the reporter left out a lot of information that the public should know.
 However, The Independent cut out my explanation of the bullet points I wrote and made it
into an article with my name on it and then published it. If I had known they would do that, I
would have written the article more clearly and I would have used examples and quotes,
especially since the general public is not necessarily familiar with the issue.  Also, regarding
the article written by The Independent, there was a misquote.  Originally, the article indicated
I took pictures of the Monarch butterflies and found a Great Egret in my yard.  However, it
was my neighbor who took the pictures and found the Great Egret.  When I brought this error
to the attention of The Independent, they corrected the article.  I do not want to take credit
for someone else’s work.

PRIOR TO MR. ALKER PURCHASING THE PROPERTY

The previous owners of the property were wonderful and they looked out for our
neighborhood.  My house’s back yard is right next to the property that is now called Kenwood
Village.  I was born into my house 55 years ago.  Please keep in mind that there were only
three houses in the entire field at the time; one was my parents’ house and one was my great-
grandmother’s house.  Baker Lane, Daffodil and Violet did not exist back then. Ever since I can
remember, the property owners voluntarily mowed the ENTIRE property without the need to
have to check up on when the field needed to be cut, or what the Fire Department’s mowing
patterns were for that year or how much of the field needed to be cut, as Mr. Alker claims he
needs to do.  The previous owners simply did the right thing and looked out for our
neighborhood by cutting the entire field at least once a year without any complaints that I or
my family ever heard.  I do not recall the field ever having tall weeds in it, even on the interior
of the property as I have almost constantly seen since Mr. Alker bought it.  

The property has been zoned part single family housing and part agricultural.  The property
owner stated in a ridiculously inaccurate article in The Independent dated November 17, 2023
that, “[Z}oning on the majority of the parcel was residential with a strip of commercial along
Calle Real since the 1950s.”  He went on to say that, “in 2020, the strip along Calle Real was
rezoned to Agriculture, although this area is not suitable for farming.”  In fact, the City of
Goleta’s Draft Environmental Impact Report of April 2016 states, “A GPA is requested to



change the land use designations of the main project parcel from Single Family Residential and
AGRICULTURE to Planned Residential.” (I am attaching the relevant section of the Draft
Environmental Impact Report for Kenwood Village.) Further, In Mr. Alker’s e-mail of July 20,
2023, he admits regarding the previous owner, “John Lane told me that he farmed the
property for about ten years but ceased operations October of 2004.  So, clearly, the property
was zoned and used for agricultural since long before 2020.  I remember the land being used
for farming when I was a child.

Also, Mr. Alker claims this area is “not suitable for farming.”  In fact, there have been
pumpkins and tomatoes successfully grown on the property.  I have personally tasted them
and they were very good.



From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 1:45 PM
To: Deborah Lopez <dlopez@cityofgoleta.org>; Andy Newkirk <anewkirk@cityofgoleta.org>; Anne 
Wells <awells@cityofgoleta.org>; ken@impulse.net; tristan.lanza@hcd.ca.gov
Cc: Anne Miller <amiller@cityofgoleta.org>; Jason Chapman <jchapman@cityofgoleta.org>; 
kmaynard@cityofgolta.org; Jennifer Fullerton <jfullerton@cityofgoleta.org>; april reid
<aprilreid@live.com>
Subject: Goleta, CA- Kenwood Village and misstatements from the property owner

PART 2

GENERAL CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY AFTER MR. ALKER PURCHASED IT

After Mr. Alker purchased the property, the ENTIRE field was hardly ever mowed.  Please keep
in mind that my many letters and verbal statements regarding this issue have stated that Mr.
Alker hardly ever mowed the ENTIRE field/field.  I NEVER said he did not, on occasion, mow
just the perimeter, though sometimes he did not.  Regarding Mr. Alker’s occasional mowing of
just the perimeter, he admits that, unlike the previous owners, he has to constantly check with
the fire department so he does not have to take care of the neighborhood by simply mowing
the entire field.  Mr. Allker states, “[I]t is important to understand that if and when the field is
cut is based upon what the fire department calls the ‘condition of the fuel’. In a very wet year
that rains into the later months, as happens this year, it may be unnecessary to cut vegetation
that is still green and thriving.  The mowing pattern will not always be identical year to year
and the time of mowing may not be the same.”  He also stated, “I mow the grasses on the
property annually when required.  I correspond with the fire department when I have
questions about weed abatement requirements and programs they have from time to time
since it does change.”  So, he only mows the field when he is required to do so and not when
the field is overgrown with weeds that could easily burn down the neighbors houses.  Mr.
Alter would not have to deal with the fire department if he chose to mow the ENTIRE field,



especially since he claims he mows the field himself, so he would not have to pay someone
else to do it.  The fact that he does not mow the entire field so the weeds do not grown tall
and potentially cause a fire hazard, especially after two fires on his property, shows his lack of
concern for the community!!  As previously stated, I am not the only person who is concerned
about the tall weeds causing/accelerating a fire, whether or not there is a perimeter.  
 
Further, what Mr. Alker does not tell you is that, in many years, he had to be told/asked to
mow the field before he actually did it, as will be discussed by relevant years below.  I will be
generally discussing various ssues for years 2009, 2013, 2016, 2019 and 2023.  I will say now
that, according to the Fire Marshal, Rob Hazard, Mr. Alker received a violation in 2019, which I
will discuss later.  Mr Alker also had to be told by the Fire Department following a complaint
from a neighbor of mine to mow the field this very year before he actually mowed it.  I do not
know who the neighbor was who complained and the Fire Department will not tell me.  I was
expressly told by Captain Dusty McKibben that the Fire Department had to ask Mr.Alker to
mow the field in 2023. Also, in a November 16, 2023 e-mail to Deputy Fire Marshall Fred Tan, I
asked him to “[p]lease confirm that your office had to ask Mr. Alker to mow the field this very
year after a complaint.” Deputy Fire Marshall Tan responded, “[W]e have not had to ask Mr.
Alker to mow his field every year.”  This indicates the Fire Department has had to ask Mr. Alker
to mow the property some years.  In fact, Mr. Alker even admits in his November 17, 2023
article in The Independent that, “Deputy Fire Marshall Fred Tan stated that they have called to
remind me to mow and that I have always cleared the field if they called.” So, clearly there
were years Mr. Alker did not mow the field of his own volition, like in 2023.  Contrary to Mr.
Alker’s false assertions that I claimed he received a violation in 2023, I did NOT claim he
received a violation in 2023.  For the record, I NEVER said Mr. Alker got a violation in 2023, as
Mr. Alker falsely claims.  The only violation I am aware of was in 2019 according to Fire
Marshall Rob Hazard.  
 
Throughout the years that Mr. Alker has owned the property, I have had neighbors
occasionally express frustration to me that Mr. Alker did not mow the field and the weeds
were very tall.  This includes my next door neighbor, Ed McGready, who is a retired either
Captain or Chief of the Santa Barbara Fire Department.  As such, he is an expert on the weed
abatement laws.  I will say that I am NOT the only person who complains/is frustrated about
the tall weeds on the field throughout the years that Mr. Alker has owed the property, both
when the field is not mowed at all and when there is only a perimeter mowed and the rest of
the field still has tall weeds which are tall than my 5’ 7 1/4 inch tall fence.  I have submitted
several pictures taken from my backyard showing the tall weeds throughout the years that Mr.
Alker has owned the property.
 
Mr. Alker is also disingenuous when he states, “[A]s I have done in the past, I would encourage
Ms. Reid or anyone with concerns about anything unsafe on the property to call me. Going
directly to the one responsible may be more satisfying and faster than lodging complaints with



the Fire Marshall.  I can’t solve a problem if it is not brought to my attention until a public
forum several years later.”  In fact, I sent two e-mails to Mr. Alker about mowing the weeds
and cleaning up the garbage on the property to the e-mail address Mr. Alker gave me.  I sent
one e-mail on 6/20/16 and one e-mail on 8/20/16. My 8/20/16 e-mail stated, “[P]lease get
back to me re: the property line, and, if you assert the property is yours, please let me know if
you are going to clean it up.”  I have already submitted the two e-mails  sent to Mr. Alker.  I
will submit them again.  Only AFTER Mr. Alker did not respond did I contact the Fire
Department years later.  The idea that Mr. Alker is claiming he is willing to listen to people’s
complaints is written just to make himself sound good to the City Council and the Planning
Commission.  I have submitted the e-mails I wrote previously, but I will submit them again
with this e-mail.
 
Regarding the CAUSE of the two fires on the property, there can be more than one cause for a
fire.  As I have repeatedly stated, Mr. Alker CAUSED the fires by failing/refusing to mow the
property/entire property, thereby allowing the fires to ignite more fully and turn into brush
fires.  As will be discussed below, Deputy Fire Marshal Tan indicates he does not know if the
perimeter was mowed at the time of the 2013 fire.  To be clear, I NEVER said the tall weeds
technically STARTED the fires.  The fires will be discussed more in depth below.
 
Further, Mr. Alker absurdly states regarding the rezoning of his project, “[S]o, by popular
demand,I applied to make the entire property residential zoned like it was for the first 43
years.”  The property owner ridiculously claims in his October 9, 2023 letter he "was respectful
of the community (with none of their input) and I feel I can do this again under a design that
allows for the 284 units.” The idea that the monstrosity Mr. Alker intends to build is being
done by popular demand is a joke. The property owner has no intention of getting any input
from the neighbors, so why would he think his monstrosity is popular? He arrogantly thinks he
knows better than the neighbors surrounding Kenwood Village what is the best for the area
that he does NOT live in.  The people who actually have to live near the proposed monstrosity
are generally against it.  I know this because I talk to my neighbors.  The people who support
the project are generally Mr. Alker’s friends and developers who do not have to suffer from
the results of the monstrosity!  Mr. Alker is clearly out to make money, not build affordable
housing for his employees he claims to be looking out for.  The idea he would try to pretend
he is altruistically trying to do what is best for the neighbors when he admits he made plans
without the input of any of the neighbors is insulting!!  Mr. Alker previously complained that
the number of units for Kenwood Village was reduced from 284 to 190 because the neighbors
“complained”.  Obviously, there would not be so many neighbors complaining if the project
was “popular” in the community!!!  He can’t have it both ways.
 
2009
 
In 2009, my mom went to the City Council meeting in about June.  My mom’s handwritten



notes state, “[I]t is past the deadline for weed abatement and this property hasn’t been
cleared as the Bishop ranch has even.  As we all know about the fires I don’t want this area to
burn.”  It is my understanding she intended to meet Ed McGready at the meeting.  A few years
ago, Mr. McGready stated to me he went to a City Council meeting with my mom.  I believe
this is possibly the one he was referring to.  According to my mom’s notes, she discussed the
issue of the weeds on Kenwood Village being too tall.  I have submitted my mom’s notes
previously, but I will submit them again.  I am sure there is a video of the City Council meeting
that can be accessed.  
 



From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 1:49 PM
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
Subject: Goleta, CA-Kenwood Village and misstatements of the property owner

PART 3

2013

On or about November 14, 2013, there was a fire on Kenwood Village near my rental property
at 17 Baker Lane, Goleta, CA. 93117.  I was working from home for an attorney in Northern
California at the time.  I heard a commotion outside, so I went out to see what was going on.  I
saw fire trucks and firefighters.  I walked up to the fire fighter who was standing on the
sidewalk in front of my house and I asked him what was going on. He said there was a fire in
the field behind the houses and he pointed to my rental house.  He stated that kids hide in the
weeds and smoke M.J. I told him that I owned the house next door to my home that he was
pointing at and I asked him if he was going to be able to save my house.  He said he did not
know.  He then expressly told me I had to leave.  When I started to go back into my house to
get some belongings, the firefighter told me I could not go back in my house. I then told the
firefighter I was going to get my keys so I could leave.  I walked back into my house and got my
keys, my shoes and my purse.  I then got in my car and left.  I went to Jack In The Box and
drove around for awhile.  When I returned over an hour later, I did not see any fire fighters or
fire trucks, so I went home and started working again.  

Mr. Alker, who was not present at the fire as far as I know, has the arrogance to claim I was



not evacuated.  In fact, the KCOY article entitled, “Pot Smoker May Have Started Goleta Fire”
expressly stated that “some homes along Baker and Tuolumne were evacuated as a
precaution.”  I already submitted a copy of the article.  I will submit it again.  Further, in a
recent e-mail dated November 25, 2023, Deputy Fire Marshall Tan stated regarding the
evacuation, “I recall telling you in conversation I did not recall a fire with an evacuation in that
area.  Apparently adjacent neighbors were given an evacuation warning.  I never told Mr. Alker
people were not ‘evicted’”. I will submit a copy of Deputy Fire Marshal Tan’s e-mail to me of
November 25, 2023.  Further, I will be happy to send you copies of the date and times of my
e-mails to my employer which show a gap in them which coincides with the fire, as well as my
credit card statement showing I went to Jack in The Box. Also, I have a copy of the Fire
Department report with the names of the firefighters who were present at the fire.  I do not
want to waste their valuable time by having to call all of them and ask them if they were the
fire fighter I spoke to and what the conversation was. This is such a minor issue that it is not
really worth wasting everyone’s time on it.  But, if Mr. Alker persists in falsely claiming I was
not told to leave, I will have no choice but to contact all 18 or so members of the fire
department who were present at the fire to see if they remember talking to me 10 years ago
and, if possible, if they remember the conversation.  Hopefully, it will not come to that, but I
will take the time to do it if Mr. Alker persists and it becomes necessary to clear my name.  I
will submit a copy of the 2013 Fire Department report.
 
In the same KCOY article mentioned above dated November 14, 2013, the article states in
part, “[I]nvestigators believe someone smoking marijuana in an open field may have started a
brush fire in Goleta Thursday afternoon. Santa Barbara County firefighters were able to quickly
contain the blaze behind homes along Tuolumne Drive and Baker Lane near Calle Real. . . One
acre burned.  A power pole was damage. . .. Five engines were called to the scene.”  The
picture in the newspaper that goes with the article clearly shows the weeds to be taller than
the firefighters.  
 
The Fire Department report states, “[V]egetation fire, reported as Calle Real and Baker Ln.
 Smoke seen from Station 11. . .Fire was in a flat, open field of light grass with sparse medium
brush.  Fire was located behind several residences being impacted by smoke moving to the
north. Very little wind, fire backing outward from area of origin.  Powerpole at end of Puerto
slightly burned at base of pole. . . PV541 investigated fire, determined cause as smoking
materials left at scene along side of walking trail from Puerto.  A potato cored for use to
smoke marijuana found.  Odor of marijuana noted on potato by PV541. Total acreage
determined to be .75 acres.”  Further, the Incident Type is listed as “Brush or brush and
grass.”  The fuel model at Origins listed as “[A]nnual grasses.”  So, clearly, the brush on the
property caused the fire to spread throughout .75 acres and caused a telephone pole to burn.
 
In a November 15, 2023 e-mail, Deputy Fire Marshal Tan made several inaccurate statements
that he later clarified.  He also later clarified some of the language he used in his November



15, 2023 e-mail.  For example, Deputy Fire Marshal Tan stated in his November 15, 2023 e-
mail, “[T]here have been two small fires on that lot.  One very small fire in 2016 and one that
was about an acre in 2013.  We are looking into our records for the 2013 fire.  As the fires
were in light fuels, the intensity and BTUs released by the fire did not pose significant threats
of ignition for the nearby structures. Light fuels do create significant smoke impacts; impacts
to traffic and commerce, and creates a stressful situation for urban areas, but Mr. Alker’s
activities to reduce ladder fuels and create a perimeter around his parcel are positive in terms
of fire impacts to the surrounding homes.”  
 
Deputy Fire Marshal Tan explained in his November 22, 2023 e-mail to me, “Light fuels are
generally grasses, they can be fairly tall in the coastal foothills.  Grasses generally grow back
each year.  Light fuels can be receptive to fire when they are green or after rains.  Grasses are
not unique to this property . . . Ladder fuels are when light fuels transition to brush which can
transition to taller trees.”  Further, according to Google, a brush fire is a fire in vegetation that
is less than 6 feet tall, such as grasses, grains, brush and saplings.  
 
Deputy Fire Marshall Tan also clarified, “I do not have record of a perimeter clearing in 2013.”
 Obviously, MJ with a potato cored may have STARTED the fire, but it can not expand to .75
acres without an accelerant.  In this case, the accelerant was the brush and grasses on the
property, at least some of which was taller than the firefighters, as evidenced by the picture
attached to the newspaper article.  As such, Mr. Alker’s failure to mow the entire
property/property was a cause the .75 acre fire that reached and burned a telephone pole.  
 
2016
 
On or about May 1, 2016, there was a second fire on Kenwood Village. The incident type
states, “Brush or brush and grass mixture fire.” The remarks state, ME11 responded for a
vegetation fire in the proximity of structures. . . Fire cause unknown.  Fire size 15 feet x 20ft.”
 The Wildland Fire Cause has a checkmark next to “undetermined”, but the same box shows
there is NO checkmark next to ”equipment” as Mr. Alker claims was the cause of the fire.
 Whatever the original cause of the fire, there would still need to be an accelerant such as
brush or brushing grass, which the fire department report states were involved in this fire, to
cause the fire to expand, even if it was a smaller fire.  I will submit a copy of the Fire
Department report for the 2016 fire.
 
I spoke to Mr. McGready on the day of one of the City Council meetings in 2016, which I
believe took place in June, but I am not sure of the exact date.  We agreed he and I would
meet at the City Council meeting, but I did not know what he intended to talk about.  When
Mr. McGready spoke at the meeting, he passionately stated the the property owner did NOT
take care of the field. The property owner, Mr. Alker, was present for Mr. McGready’s
comments.  I am sure the City Council has video of the meeting they can look at if necessary.  
 



Around that time, I took pictures of the field from my back yard.  The pictures showed the
weeds were taller than my 5” 7 1/4’ fence.  I previously submitted a picture of the field with
the tall weeds I took in 2016.  I will send the picture again.
 
Later that very year, I sent the two e-mails mentioned above, one on 6/20/16 and one on
8/20/16, to the e-mail address Mr. Alker gave me regarding complaints about the tall weeds
and the garbage on the property.  My 8/20/16 e-mail stated, “[P]lease get back to me re: the
property line, and, if you assert the property is yours, please let me know if you are going to
clean it up.”  As previously stated, Mr. Alker failed/refused to respond, even if it was just to
say he did not agree with me about having to mow the field.  
 
My 6/20/2016 e-mail states, “[F]urther, you can't even bother to take care of the property as
it is.  When there was a fire on your property at the back of 17 Baker Lane in
November 2013, and my rental house almost burnt down, the news took pictures of the site
of the fire. The pictures showed that the weeds were over a feet taller than the firemen. Then,
a few days ago, one of my neighbors had to complain about the weeds again just so you would
mow part of the property. If you can't take care of the property before anything is built, why
should anyone believe you would take care of the property when you are building on it?”
 PLEASE NOTICE THAT I SAID THE PROPERTY OWNER MOWED PART OF THE PROPERTY, I.E. HE
JUST MOWED SOME OF THE PERIMETER.  HE DID NOT MOW THE ENTIRE PROPERTY,
INCLUDING THE SECTION BETWEEN MY RENTAL PROPERTY’S BACK FENCE AND THE ACTUAL
SO-CALLED PERIMETER THE PROPERTY OWNER DID MOW, WHEREIN THE WEEDS WERE STILL
TALL.  As a result, there were still tall weeds near the back fence of my rental property, even
after Mr. Alker mowed the perimeter farther away from my fence than the tall weeds.  The
8/29/16 e-mail I wrote states, “[H”owever, there is a lot of weeds, trash and garbage
gathering up. One of the neighbors even mentioned it. If you own it, please clean it . . .  I am
talking about the property between the fence on 17 Baker Lane after the property slopes
down, where the property becomes level with the rest of your field.”  I then concluded the e-
mail by saying, “[P]lease get back to me re: the property line, and, if you assert the property is
yours, please let me know if you are going to clean it up.  The neighbor I was referring to in
both e-mails is Mr. McGready.  I have already submitted the two e-mails.  I will submit them
again.
 



From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 1:53 PM
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
Subject: Goleta, CA. Kenwood Village and misstatements from the property owner

PART 4

2019

In an e-mail dated October 19, 2023, Fire Marshal Rob Hazard stated, “The last inspection of
the lot was in 2019, and it was marked as a violation.”  I have previously submitted this e-mail,
but I am submitting it again.  Deputy Fire Marshal Tan claims Mr. Alker never got a violation.
 He states, “[F]ire has been in contact with Mr. Alker regularly over the years, but we never
issued him a violation notice.”  Regardless, Mr. Alker even admits he receives phone calls from
the Fire Department to get him to mow the field, which is not done for every one who owns
property.  Mr. Alker states in his November 17, 2023 newspaper article, “Deputy Fire Marshal
Fred Tan stated that they have called to remind me to mow and that I have always cleared the
field if they called."  Further, Deputy Fire Marshal Tran stated in his November 25, 2023 e-mail
to me, “[W]e have not had to ask Mr. Alker to mow the field every year.”  This implies that
there are some years, like 2023, wherein they had to ask him to mow the property.

Also in 2019, Mr. McGready again brought up the tall weeds in the Kenwood Village property,
as he had on occasion in the past.  Since he was a retired Chief or Captain, I knew he had
expertise in the area of weed abatement.  Since Mr. McGready believed the weeds were too
tall, and Mr. Alker, the property owner, did not respond to my previous e-mails regarding the



tall weeds, I had no choice but to contact the Fire Department directly for help. If anyone has
an issue with Mr. McGready’s comments, they are free to contact him.  He was a former high
ranking official at the Santa Barbara Fire Department.  He also lives next door to me.  I am sure
the City Council or the Planning Commission can get his contact information if they feel it is
necessary.
 
Following Mr. McGready’s comments, I contacted the Fire Department and I ended up talking
to Deputy Fire Marshal Fred Tan.  I complained about the tall weeds.  I also told Deputy Fire
Marshal Fred Tan that there had been a fire in 2013 on the Kenwood Village property.
Unfortunately, Deputy Fire Marshal Tan told me he was not familiar with any fires on the
property in 2013 and he liked to keep up with all fires in the area.  He also told me he was not
working in the Deputy Fire Marshal position in 2013.  In addition, he told me that Mr. Alker
had come in to his office.  Deputy Fire Marshal Tan said he liked Mr. Alker very much. I hung
up the telephone with the impression that Deputy Fire Marshall Tan would not follow up with
my Complaint.  It was only a few weeks ago that I learned Deputy Fire Marshal Tan did actually
follow up with my Complaint from 2019.
 
In Deputy Fire Marshal’s November 25, 2023 e-mail to me, he now stated, “I have never met
Mr. Alker in person.  We have spoken twice.  Once around 2016 or 2017 where he asked me if
I had additional guidance for clearance and once yesterday.  On the 2016 or 2017 phone call, I
advised him to maintain the 20 foot clearance and manage ladder fuels on the parcel.  I also
advised him any additional clearance would be beneficial reduce (sic) the potential for
ignitions and damage to structures.  Yesterday, I expressed support for his 80 foot clearance
and  to address ladder fuels.”  As stated above, even if Deputy Fire Marshal Tan did not have
to ask Mr. Alker to mow the field every year, he clearly indicates the Fire Department had to
ask Mr. Alker to mow his field some years, like in 2023, as the Fire Department report of my
2023 Complaint clearly indicates and Captain McKibben told me.  
 
At the time I called Deputy Fire Marshal Tan in 2019, there were weeds on the property near
my house that were taller than my 5’ 7 1/4” fence.  Further, the picture in the Fire
Department report I just received shows there are large sections of green that appear to be
weeds. If the picture on the 2019 report is accurate and it was taken on December 20, 2019,
the picture shows there were sections of weeds around the Kenwood Village property, as I
had indicated to Deputy Fire Marshal Tan.  The report states, “[W]e have only required a 20
foot swath around the perimeter of the parcel to reduce ignition potential and mitigate
damage to neighboring fences in the case of a grass fire.”  This further indicates that there
were tall weeds on parts of the property.  I am attaching the 2019 Fire Department Report
regarding my 2019 Complaint.  Further, for some reason, the Fire Department felt the need to
produced a report for 6/24/22.  I am also submitting that report.
 
2023
 



In about August 2023, I again took pictures of the property from my back yard to show the
weeds to be taller than my 5’ 7 1/4 “ long fence.  I already submitted a picture from 2023
showing the weeds were once again taller than my fence.  I will submit the picture again.
 
On or about October 18, 2023, I had a discussion with former Councilmember Roger Aceves
and a private person.  Councilmember Aceves stated that he looked at the Kenwood Village
property and he believed I should contact the Fire Department because the weeds were too
tall.  I told former Councilmember Aceves that I had contacted the fire department some years
ago and I spoke to Deputy Fire Marshal Fred Tan.  I then stated that Deputy Fire Marshal Tan
did not do anything when I complained previously, which is what I thought at the time.
 Former Councilmember Aceves then stated I should call the Fire Marshall.  Since former
Councilmember Aceves is much more informed about weed abatement laws then I am, I said I
would try again to contact the fire department.
 
The next day, I e-mailed the Fire Marshall, Rob Marshall, regarding the tall weeds, which were
the same or taller than they were when I took pictures of them in August 2023.  Fire Marshal
Hazard replied, “I will have one of my inspectors take a look. In the past we have required the
owner of the vacant lot property to mow a 20 to 30 foot strip along the perimeter of the lot.
Based on the vegetation type and the size of the lot a perimeter mowing is warranted but it’s
not required for the entire lot to be cleared. My inspector will reassess the width requirement
to make sure your homes have adequate defensible space.  The last inspection of the lot was
in 2019, and it was marked as a violation. The property owner corrected the violation. In that
vegetation type it is required to complete the mowing annually by June 1st.  By the way, I am
aware of the fire in 2013, I was one of the firefighters that responded.”  I am submitting the e-
mail exchange between myself and Fire Marshall Hazard.
 
On or about October 23, 2023, Captain Dustin McKibben called me to set up a date and time
for him to inspect the Kenwood Village property.  Shortly thereafter, Captain McKibben came
to my house to inspect the property.  Captain McKibben did state that, at the time of the
inspection, I found there to be 80” of clearance from her fence line as well as 80’ to 100’ in
surrounding perimeter.”  However, while there, Captain McKibben told me that earlier in the
year, one of my neighbors had contacted the fire department to complain about the tall
weeds. As a result, the fire department contacted Mr. Alker and asked him why he had not
mowed the perimeter of the property.  The report regarding my 2023 complaint states,
“Request was made spring of 2023 of the parcel owner to clear 25” around perimeter
adjacent to homes.”  In other words, Mr. Alker did not mow the property of his own volition in
2023, as he pretends.  I am submitting the Fire Department’s 2023 report regarding my
complaint.
 
Upon reviewing the Fire Department’s report of my 2023 complaint, the pictures attached
show some tall weeds on the property.  I am attaching a copy of the report, including the



pictures of the property.  The pictures from the fire department show tall weeds in places.
 
In an e-mail from Captain McKibben I just received, he confirmed, “[T]he Calle Real subject
property owner has been very responsive to doing the REQUESTED weed abatement each
year.  In spring 2023 upon contacting the owner after a concerned neighbor contacted me, he
explained that he was waiting for tractor parts to complete the requested hazard abatement.”
 Captain McKibben stated they have had to contact Mr. Alker to request that he mow the
property in the past, including this very year, as I have stated.  So, I am not the only person to
complain about the tall weeds!  I a submitting a copy of Captain Dustin McKibben’s e-mail.
 
IN FACT, AS I LOOK THROUGH MY WINDOW ON THIS VERY DAY, THE WEEDS ARE SO TALL
THAT I CAN NOT EVEN SEE ANY OF THE TWO STORY APARTMENTS THAT WERE BUILT ON THE
OTHER SIDE OF THE KENWOOD VILLAGE PROPERTY FROM ME; NOT EVEN THE ROOFTOPS.  I
AM ONLY ABLE TO SEE THE APARTMENTS ON THE VERY RARE OCCASIONS THAT MR. ALKER
ACTUALLY MOWS THE ENTIRE PROPERTY!!  
 
“ROLLED OUT PLANS”
 
After the third meeting on rezoning/upzoning in July 2023, I spoke with Councilmember
Kyriaco.  He stated he met with Mr. Alker before the rezoning/upzoning was announced to the
public.  He stated he was shown “rolled out plans” by Mr. Alker.  Recently, Councilmember
Kyriaco clarified that the “rolled out plans” he was shown were the old plans for the 60
housing units; not new plans with an increased number of housing units.
 
Thank you.
 
April Reid
15 Baker Lane
Goleta, CA. 93117
 



From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 2:06 PM
To: Deborah Lopez <dlopez@cityofgoleta.org>; Anne Wells <awells@cityofgoleta.org>; Andy
Newkirk <anewkirk@cityofgoleta.org>; ken@impulse.net; tristan.lanza@hcd.ca.gov
Cc: Jason Chapman <jchapman@cityofgoleta.org>; Jennifer Fullerton <jfullerton@cityofgoleta.org>;
kmaynard@cityofgolta.org; Anne Miller <amiller@cityofgoleta.org>; april reid <aprilreid@live.com>
Subject: Goleta, CA- Kenwood Village and misstatements from the property owner

PART 5

The following are attachments to my e-mail.  I will need to send them in parts because my
computer will not allow me to send a large amount of documents at the same time.  The
documents in this submissions are:

1. 2 e-mails from Councilmember Kasdin clarifying whether there may be any written
documentation that was signed by property owners to satisfy HCD for
rezoning/upzoning.

2. The EIR report for Kenwood Village from 2016 classifying part of the land as agricultural
in 2016, long before the property owner claims it was reclassified in 2020.

3. My mom's notes from around 2009 indicating she was complaining about the tall weeds
even back then.  It is my understanding she even went to a City C9uncil meeting to
complain, which the City Council should have video of.

Stuart2ndlemail.pdf 2016EIRreport.pdf

https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imqCoQkysAbVKeb4
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imqCoQkysAbVKeb4
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imtWTrBnerHzljn1
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imtWTrBnerHzljn1
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imwjatzUL2MbY4mo


Mom’snotes.pdf

Planning Commission.jpg

https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imwjatzUL2MbY4mo
https://1drv.ms/i/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imk_MuAF5wDGFZPz
https://1drv.ms/i/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imk_MuAF5wDGFZPz
https://1drv.ms/i/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imk_MuAF5wDGFZPz
https://1drv.ms/i/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0imk_MuAF5wDGFZPz














From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 2:30 PM
To: Deborah Lopez <dlopez@cityofgoleta.org>; Anne Wells <awells@cityofgoleta.org>; Andy
Newkirk <anewkirk@cityofgoleta.org>; ken@impulse.net; tristan.lanza@hcd.ca.gov
Cc: Jason Chapman <jchapman@cityofgoleta.org>; Jennifer Fullerton <jfullerton@cityofgoleta.org>;
Anne Miller <amiller@cityofgoleta.org>; kmaynard@cityofgolta.org; april reid <aprilreid@live.com>
Subject: Goleta, Ca. and Kenwood Village and the mistatements from the propery owner

PART 6

Stateattachments2.pdf Tan2023letter.pdf

The following are additional attachments:

1,  An article about a fatal car crash on Calle Real near Kenwood Village, a picture of a bike
with fresh flowers on it from another fatal accident near Kenwood Village and a picture of the
curve on Calle Real after Baker Lane, all of which were not mentioned in the e-mail I sent.  I
just did not want to rescan everything.  The attachment also includes a news article of the
2013 fire which shows the weeds were taller than the firefighters; two e-mails I sent to the
property owner in 2016 asking him to mow the field wherein the property owner did not
respond, so I was forced some years later to contact the Fire Department; and a picture of the
tall weeds taken a month or so ago in 2023 which shows the weeds on part of the property
are still so tall, I cannot even see the top of the apartment buildings on the other side of the
Kenwood Village property.
2. An e-mail from deputy Fire Marshal Tran clarifying some of the inaccuracies in the

https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0im3VyAYozRsadMO0
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0im3VyAYozRsadMO0
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0im542Vw25-EmK7IS
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0im542Vw25-EmK7IS


comments he sent to the City Council's public comment website previously. 

































From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 2:39 PM
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

PART 7

The following are additional attachments;

1. The Fire Department report of the 2013 fire which called the fire a vegetation fire.  The
fire was started by M.J. and travelled .75 acres due to brush/grasses on the property.
The fire travelled and caused damage to a telephone pole.  The pictures in the
newspaper show the weeds to be taller than the firefighters.  Further, Fire Marshal Tan
stated in the e-mail he sent to me that he could NOT confirm the perimeter of the
property was mowed at the time.

2013report.pdf

https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0im-j0IWagYOplAYR
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0im-j0IWagYOplAYR




































From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 2:46 PM
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
Subject: Goleta- Kenwood Village and misstatements from the property owner

PART 8

The following additional attachments are:

1. The report of the 2016 fire
2. A picture from 2016 showing the weeds in some places are so tall, I can't even see the

top of the apartments on the other side of the Kenwood Village property.

2016report.pdf Photo_2023-08-15_214839.pdf

https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0inC-BRUXCrohTARc
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0inC-BRUXCrohTARc
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0inEYeWGzVAMpnJkM
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0inEYeWGzVAMpnJkM


























From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 3:02 PM
To: Deborah Lopez <dlopez@cityofgoleta.org>; Anne Wells <awells@cityofgoleta.org>; Andy
Newkirk <anewkirk@cityofgoleta.org>; ken@impulse.net; tristan.lanza@hcd.ca.gov
Cc: Jennifer Fullerton <jfullerton@cityofgoleta.org>; Jason Chapman <jchapman@cityofgoleta.org>;
Anne Miller <amiller@cityofgoleta.org>; kmaynard@cityofgolta.org; april reid <aprilreid@live.com>
Subject: Goleta- Kenwood Village and misstatements from the property owner

PART 9

Planning Commission_1.jpg

2019report.pdf

Additional attachments:

1. An e-mail from Fire Marshal Rob Hazard stating the property owner received a violation
for not mowing the field in 2019.

2. A report from 2019 regarding my Complaint to the Fire Department.  There is also a
report from 2022 wherein the Fire Department felt the need to inspect the property

https://1drv.ms/i/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0inNAbGwwSHG9neau
https://1drv.ms/i/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0inNAbGwwSHG9neau
https://1drv.ms/i/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0inNAbGwwSHG9neau
https://1drv.ms/b/s!AqUWWWv1rNd0inQvMaZSKCNlEJLy


again for some reason.



















From: Becky Davis <becky.davis@mac.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 1:53 PM
To: Andy Newkirk <anewkirk@cityofgoleta.org>
Subject: Rezoning for more housing

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Goleta Planning Staff & City Council,

My vote is a vehement “NO!” as the current rezoning is proposed. It is very, very poor planning, for a
number of reasons. Please consider that I have lived and worked in Goleta for over 50 years,
including a couple decades in Old Town, a couple decades for UCSB, and have been active in
environmental responsibility (worked for the Coastal Commission, bike commuter, etc.) the entire
time.

Kenwood Village (on Calle Real, by the 7/11 on the north side of 101):

The proposed density is way too dense for that site. The majority of the homes near there are single
story, single family residences, built in the 1950s through 1980s. Calle Real is only one lane, with a
relatively high speed limit, and already dangerous turning from side streets, due to poor visibility. I
never ride my bike there; I never walk there; I take other routes (Cathedral Oaks or Hollister) when
walking or biking —  and usually when driving — due to the dangers of that stretch of road. 

There are essentially no services other than 7/11 & the restaurants behind it nearby, within sale
walking distance. Groceries, pharmaceuticals, and most other common retail establishments are
across the freeway, WITHOUT the pedestrian and bicycle overpass that was supposed to be built
near there (and without the west Goleta fire station that we’re still waiting for). Multiple stories in
an area of mostly single story buildings may block the existing residences views and sunlight (which
could lead to lawsuits).

If a senior residence similar to Friendship Manor is to be built there (and I question whether it
should be), it ought to be limited to less than 100 units, especially considering how many of the
seniors probably still will be mobile and have vehicles. What is proposed is inappropriately sited, too
dense, too dangerous, and represents very poor planning.

When you factor in that the county has proposed over 1000 homes across the street from Dos



Pueblos HS, on the golf course, you have a potential disaster. The Glenn Annie northbound off-ramp
already backs up onto the freeway multiple times a day, with just the existing traffic. It is already
over-subscribed, yet between Goleta’s poor planning and the County’s poor planning, you want to
add well over a thousand more vehicles a day to that traffic? Think again please.
 
One point that is truly irritating is the unfairness of the proposed high density sites. The people who
employ many of the lowest income workers in the area live in Montecito or Hope Ranch — their
gardeners, maids, personal helpers, and related. Yet there is NO low income housing proposed for
those areas. I realize that you are a City employee, not a County employee, but basic fairness and
responsible government would suggest that you should work together to convert one of Montecito’s
or Hope Ranch’s (or both) golf courses to 1000+ low income residences, rather than a golf course
that serves as a wildfire buffer zone to the suburban homes that define Goleta, and its sole HS. 
 
I’ve been evacuated for wildfire reasons at least five times in the last 50 years. Adding additional
housing to a geographically constricted region (narrowing coastal plain with only N or S 101 to
evacuate to) represents such a break from responsible planning as to lead many of us to question
the competence of the Planning Departments. When you add in perpetual water shortages (I fondly
remember the water moratorium of the 1970s, and wish we could reinstate it), our questions about
your abilities to responsibly plan become even greater.
 
It’s time to tell the idiots in Sacramento that we can’t keep inviting the world to move to California
when we don’t have the water, electricity, infrastructure, or budget to handle an ever increasing
population.
 
Thank you for your time and attention. Please do the responsible thing and rethink which sites
should have what densities.
 
Becky Davis
7865 Rio Vista Drive
Goleta, CA 93117
becky.davis@silcom.com * 805-968-4600

mailto:becky.davis@silcom.com


 
From: Dickens, Clayton <cdickens@Communitywestbank.com>  
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 2:05 PM 
To: City Clerk Group <cityclerkgroup@cityofgoleta.org> 
Subject: KenMar and other high density projects 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 
Good a�ernoon, 
 
I am concerned that Goleta is becoming the dumping ground for high density housing, especially in the 
3rd district which now conveniently lacks a representa�ve on the Council. 
 
I am very much against rezoning amendments and enlarging the density of these projects. 
 
I also do not understand why you are using an old traffic survey, the corridor on Calle Real is dangerous 
and there have been many incidents with injury. 
 
I DO NOT want Kenmar enlarged I want it shrunk. The density purposed is insane and a money grab. 
 
I live down the street, my kids were born and raised in Goleta, I work in Goleta, please do not ruin it for 
$$$$$. 
 
Thank you for reading my rant, I do appreciate it. I Love Goleta, and I am grateful for all the hard work 
the city planners, council and commitees have done to keep our city as the Good Land. 
 
Warmest regards 
 

 
Clay Dickens 
7779 Jenna Drive 
Goleta, CA 93117 
8095-689-1361 
claytonrdickens@yahoo.com 
 
Please refer to our privacy policies at www.communitywestbank.com before sending us any personal 
information. Note: This e-mail contains PRIVILEGED and CONFIDENTIAL information intended only for 
the use of the specific individual or entity named above. If you or your employer is not the intended 
recipient of this e-mail or employee or agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you 
are hereby notified that any unauthorized dissemination or copying of this e-mail or the information 
contained in it is strictly prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, please immediately 
notify the person named above at once by telephone and delete the message. Thank you.  
 

mailto:claytonrdickens@yahoo.com
http://www.communitywestbank.com/


From: Mona Harnish <mjharnish1954@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 4:40 PM 
To: Paula Perotte <pperotte@cityofgoleta.org>; Kyle Richards <krichards@cityofgoleta.org>; Stuart 
Kasdin <skasdin@cityofgoleta.org>; James Kyriaco <jkyriaco@cityofgoleta.org>; Luz Reyes-Martin 
<lreyes-martin@cityofgoleta.org> 
Subject: High Density Housing 
  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

I know the state is forcing housing down our throats, but we need to look at how high 
density housing will affect the lives of those that live in Goleta.  Smaller areas with 
medium density housing would be better, spread out and not take over an area.  Other 
areas outside of Goleta also need to be considered. 
  
I am concerned about the crime that will come with high density, low income housing.  I 
also don't know where the water will come from.  I could not get a permit for a water 
meter for a single home, where will the water come from for thousands of homes? 
  
Goleta also does not have the infrastructure to support all of these homes.  Traffic will 
greatly impacted.  (Especially with the City wanting to make a single lane in each 
direction of Hollister Old Town).  I fear the town will become a little LA, which I don't 
think anyone wants. 
  
Please reconsider high density homes- they will only take away from the area.  
  
Thank you, 
  
Mona Harnish 
  
 

mailto:mjharnish1954@yahoo.com
mailto:pperotte@cityofgoleta.org
mailto:krichards@cityofgoleta.org
mailto:skasdin@cityofgoleta.org
mailto:jkyriaco@cityofgoleta.org
mailto:lreyes-martin@cityofgoleta.org
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Andy Newkirk

From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com>
Sent: Friday, December 1, 2023 9:42 AM
To: Paul.McDougall@hcd.ca.gov
Cc: Anne Wells; Deborah Lopez; Andy Newkirk
Subject: QUESTIONS FOR YOU REGARDING ALKER E-MAILS FOR GOLETA

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

To help protect your privacy, 
Micro so ft Office prevented  
auto matic downlo ad o f this  
picture from the Internet.

Paulemails.pdf 
 
Mr. McDougall: 
 
PLEASE ANSWER THE QUESTIONS BELOW IF POSSIBLE.  SINCE YOU E‐MAILED WITH MR. ALKER ABOUT 
KENWOOD VILLAGE, I WOULD APPRECITE A RESPONSE TO MY E‐MAIL AS SOON AS POSSIBLE SINCE THE FINAL 
HOUSING ELEMENT PLAN FOR GOLETA IS SCHEDULED FOR DECEMBER 5, 2‐23. 
 
This is written in regards to the e‐mails sent between yourself and Ken Alker, the owner of Kenwood Village at 
7264 Calle Real, Goleta, Ca 93117.  I am not sure if you know this, but The City Council, who are familiar with 
the city, lowered the number of housing units on Kenwood Village from 284 down to 190 after public 
comment, as Mr. Alker admits.  The public brought up valid reasons for having issues with building high 
density housing on Kenwood Village.  The City Council agreed. 
 
In your e‐mail correspondence to Mr. Alker, he asked, “I don’t think City Council will vote to change back to 
284 units (eliminate the 190 unit cap) if they feel there is any chance HCD would then reject their submittal. Is 
there any way to find out if eliminating the 190 cap on Kenwood Village would be approved by HCD so that 
when City Council votes at the beginning of December, they could be informed if this would cause HCD to kick 
back the Housing Element or if this change would by considered OK.” You also brought up on your own the 
idea of focussing on looking “about intersections with SB 330 related to caps”, whatever that means.  I am not 
sure why you seem to be telling Mr. Alker what to focus on to find ways to get the number back up to 294.  It 
would be nice if the public were informed of the issues you and Mr. Alker were discussing so we could 
comment on specific issues rather than not having any idea what statements to make or what focus we should 
have. 
 
My questions are: 
 
1.  WHY IS IT SO IMPORTANT TO REQUIRE THE CITY COUNCIL TO FIND MOSTLY HIGH DENSITY HOUSING 
BEFORE THE STATE WILL APPROVE GOLETA’S HOUSING ELEMENT PLAN, ESPECIALLY SINCE THERE WAS 
SUFFICIENT SINGLE FAMILY HOUSING TO REACH THE REQUIRED HCD NUMBERS? 
 
2.  ARE YOU OR ARE YOU NOT COMING UP WITH ARGUMENTS TO HELP MR. ALKER? 
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3.  ARE YOU IMPOSING YOUR OPINION OF WHERE TO ARBITRARILY BUILD HIGH DENSITY HOUSING ON THE 
CITY OF GOLETA INSTEAD OF LETTING THE CITY COUNCIL FIND SITES THAT ARE GOOD TO BUILD ON? 
 
4.  ARE YOU WORKING ON GETTING/FORCING THE CITY COUNCIL TO AGREE TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF 
HOUSING UNITS ON KENWOOD VILLAGE FROM 190 TO 284, EVEN THOUGH THE CITY COUNCIL, WHO LIVE 
HERE AND KNOW THE AREA, SAW FIT TO DECREASE THE NUMBER OF HOUSING UNITS FOR VALID REASONS? 
 
In case you do not know, let me tell you what is going on from my own perspective. Regarding the Housing 
Element Plan, it is my understanding The City Council found several great sites in Goleta wherein nothing had 
to be rezoned/upzoned to high density housing in order to satisfy the State’s numbers requirements. The 
housing selected fit in nicely with our community.  However, I was informed the State rejected the first two 
Housing Element Plans, which included acceptable single family housing BECAUSE the State was, for some 
unknown reason, arbitrarily requiring Goleta and other cities to build high density housing units rather than 
being satisfied with the number the single family housing provided, even if it would satisfy all the State’s 
requirements.  As such, on the third round, the Goleta City Council is now being forced to consider rezoning 
for high density housing, even if a site is not good for high density housing.  According to one member of the 
City Council, “[A]s for an agreement, all staff can do is encourage the landowner to seek a project that is 20‐30 
units per acre. They needed to get letters from the landowner indicating that the landowner wanted the 
project. HCD was pushing cities and counties to have evidence of landowner interest for parcels that are 
vacant.”  In other words, it seems sites were picked for rezoning/upzoning based on whether the landowner 
would agree to build high density housing, NOT because it was a good site to build high density housing. This is 
NOT a way to chose good places to build.  People who need affordable housing deserve to live on good sites, 
just like everyone else! 
 
Unfortunately, Mr. Alker at Kenwood Village was one of the property owners to agree to arbitrarily put high 
density housing on his property.  So,, his property was selected.  If you do not know this, the property was 
partially zoned agricultural, it has a protected creek with protected animals in it and there are Monarch 
butterflies on the opposite end of the property from the Creek, just to name a few issues.  Further, the 
roadway in front of Kenwood Village contains one lane of traffic and it is a dangerous roadway.  Just last week, 
there was another car accident wherein someone had to be extracted from a car and taken by ambulance to 
the hospital.  This will only get worse with increased traffic. 
 
By the way, off the Glen Annie and Storke road on/offramp, did you know that the County also is planning on 
building around 1,500 housing units on the Glen Annie Golf Course near Kenwood Village that was NOT 
included in the studies for the Housing Element as far as I know?  Also not considered is Shelby, which, if 
considered and approved, would probably have over 100 housing units at a minimum also.  There is also 
Colusa, which is on the list.  Then, there are all the housing units planned for Hollister near the Glen Annie and 
Storke Road offramp on the opposite side of the freeway.  I am not an expert, but all of these added housing 
units would use the Glen Anne and Storke Road on/offramp.  I was told by someone that the intersection of 
Caalle Real and the Glen Annie and Storke Road on/offramp was rated a D, or maybe a C.  What will happen 
with possibly 2,000 plus new vehicles at the same intersection of a small suburban community on the 
Kenwood Village side of the freeway that was not built for a ton of traffic? 
 
During three long nights of public comment regarding the rezoning, The City Council, who live in Goleta and 
are familiar with the area, heard the concerns from the community regarding putting high density housing on 
the property, and the City Council saw fit to at least lower the number of housing units from the possibility of 
284 to 190. In fact, during one of the public comment meetings, one member of the City Council lowered the 
number of housing units from 284 to 190, which they indicated was the lowest number of units they could 
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possibly have on this property and still have the number of housing units for high density housing the City said 
it needed to satisfy the State’s requirements.  In other words, it seems including this site for high density 
housing was all about just getting the needed numbers. 
 
TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THAT IS HOW KENWOOD VILLAGE BECAME THE ONLY PROPERTY THE CITY 
COUNCIL SAW FIT TO LOWER THE NUMBER OF UNITS BUILT ON THE PROPERTY AND STILL KEEP THE REQUIRED 
CLASSIFICATION FOR HIGH DENSITY HOUSING.  THE NUMBER OF HOUSING UNITS ON KENWOOD VILLAGE 
WAS REDUCED TO 190 AFTER CAREFUL DEBATE GIVEN THE RESTRICTIONS THE STATE PUT ON THE CITY OF 
GOLETA. IT WAS NOT ARBITRARY OR DISINGENUOUS, AS MR. ALKER CLAIMS.  TO THE BEST OF MY 
RECOLLECTION, THERE WAS WELL OVER 5 HOURS OF DEBATE ON KENWOOD VILLAGE ALONE.  In fact, the 
entire third day of three devoted to the Housing Element Plan was devote to discussing Kenwood village and 
that was after people spoke on Kenwood village extensively the first night 
  
Now, it seems the State is trying to help Mr. Alker build 284 units of high density housing on a site that the City 
Council deemed was not a good fit. Are you researching theories for him to argue and maybe even 
pushing/forcing the City Council to arbitrarily get the number of housing units back up to the maximum of 284 
without understanding that the City Council lowered the number of housing units for a reason and they know 
the City of Goleta best? 
 
It should be pointed out that The City of Goleta was assigned the vast amount of housing units in the County, 
even though Goleta is the City that has taken on the burden of already building the most housing units over 
the past several years.  Some city’s did not meet their goals in previous years like Goleta did.  It is my 
understanding that affluent places like Hope Ranch and Montecito, where the celebrities live, did not rezone 
property like the diverse Goleta did. 
 
Further, Goleta is divided into 4 districts, Districts 1 and 2 have City Council Representatives.  District 4 has an 
unofficial representative since a City Council member lives in the District.  Our District, District 3, which is the 
second most diverse District in Goleta, was abandoned and there is no one who represents us.  Even though 
our Mayor lives in District 3, she represents the entire City.  She also had to recuse herself regarding Kenwood 
Village only. 
 
Since you responded to Mr. Alker, I would appreciate the courtesy of a response as soon as possible.  The 
FINAL City Council meeting is December 5, 2023. 
 
April Reid 
15 Baker Lane 
Goleta, CA. 93117 
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Andy Newkirk

From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com>
Sent: Friday, December 1, 2023 4:55 PM
To: Deborah Lopez; Anne Miller; Anne Wells; Andy Newkirk; tristan.lanza@hcd.ca.gov
Cc: ken@impulse.net; Jason Chapman; kmaynard@cityofgolta.org; Jennifer Fullerton; aprilreid@cox.net
Subject: Follow-up e-mail regarding the Kenwod Village owner's misstatements

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
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2023 picture.pdf 
 
To the City Council, the Planning Commission and the State: 
 
The following is additional information responding to Mr. Ken Alker, the property owner of Kenwood Village, 
who made misstatements at the Planning Commission meeting, as well as in a newspaper article.  Many of the 
issues Mr. Alker misstated were already addressed in my previous lengthy e‐mail to you with 
documentation.  I will also address some issues again briefly, since I addressed them in other previous emails, 
such as the Monarch Butterflies found on the property. 
 
Ever since Mr. Alker bought the property over a decade and a half ago, Mr. Alker has allowed the weeds on at 
least the part of the property to almost consistently grow taller than my 5” 7 1/4’ fence, though there are 
times when Mr. Alker will mow the perimeter around the neighboring houses.  On very few occasions, he has 
mowed the entire property.  Today, Mr. Alker allows the weeds to grow so tall I can not see the roof top of the 
apartments on the other side of Kenwood Village, as has been the case almost consistently since Mr. Alker 
purchased the property.  If Mr. Alker really had great regard for the neighbors, he would mow the tall weeds 
on the entire property, including the middle of the property.  It should not cost him a lot of money since he 
claims he mows the property himself.  Further, the property used to be agricultural land and it was used to 
grow tomatoes and pumpkins, contrary to Mr. Alker’s assertions the area was not suitable for farming.  So 
there should not be an issue as to why Mr. Alker could not mow the entire property. I may have forgotten to 
include the recent picture I took in 2023 that shows how the weeds are taller than my fence.  I am submitting 
it now. 
 
There have been two fires on the property since Mr. Alker purchased it, both listed as “brush” fires. In the 
2013 fire, it was started by a marijuana cigarette. The brush/annual grasses caused it to expand .75 acres and 
to burn the bottom of a telephone pole.  The smoke was seen from the fire station across the freeway.  I was 
evacuated from my home.  I found a second newspaper article that states people were evacuated from their 
homes during the 2013 fire.  The Independent article entitled Fire in Goleta along Glen Annie, dated 
November 14, 2013 states, “[M]ultiplle engine crew have discend (sic) on the scene and are coordinating with 
dispatchers.  Evacuations have been ordered along Tuolumne Drive and west‐facing homes on Baker 
Lane.”  The picture in the newspaper showed the weeds to be taller than the firefighters.  Deputy Fire 
Marshall Tan, who was not working at his current job at the time of the fire, stated, “I do not have record of a 
perimeter clearing in 2013.”  As I previously stated, I was evacuated, contrary to the property owner’s 
assertions that I was not evacuated. Also, there is no indication the fire came “from smoking from a sidewalk”, 
as Mr. Alker claims. 
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On May 1, 2016, there was a second, smaller fire; 15 feet by 20 feet. The Fire Department report states the 
fire was a “[b]rush or brush and grass mixture fire.”   The report states the Fire Cause was 
“undetermined.”  Even if there was equipment on the property at the time, that is not listed as a cause of the 
fire, as Mr. Alker claims.  Regardless, the brush/grass caused the fire to burn until the Fire Department 
arrived.  A picture I took in 2016 shortly after the fire once again shows the weeds to be taller than my fence. 
 
In an e‐mail dated October 19, 2023, Fire Marshal Rob Hazard stated, “[T]he last inspection of the lot was in 
2019, and it was marked as a violation.”  This seems to indicate, at some point in 2019, Mr. Alker did not mow 
the perimeter/property in a timely manner.  At some point, Mr. Alker did mow just the perimeter, though the 
remainder of the property still had tall weeds.  After Mr. Alker ignored my 2016 e‐mails requesting to mow the 
tall weeds, I did finally contact the Fire Department in 2019 due to the constantly tall weeds over parts of the 
property after hearing many complaints from my neighbors.  The Fire Department said he only had to mow 
the perimeter, though I was not told of the 2019 inspection until a few weeks ago. 
 
Then, in 2023, I contacted the Fire Department again due to the tall weeds and the complaints of others. The 
Fire Department came to my house and inspected the property.  Though I was told the perimeter was mowed, 
the fire department also told me there had been an earlier complaint causing the Fire Department to contact 
Mr. Alker to mow the perimeter.  The Fire Department also sent me an e‐mail regarding a Complaint from 
another unknown neighbor earlier in the year, stating, “[I]n spring 2023 upon contacting the owner after a 
concerned neighbor contacted me, he explained that he (Mr. Alker) was waiting for tractor parts to complete 
the requested hazard abatement.”  Even Mr. Alker admits “they (the Fire Department) have called me to 
remind me to mow and that every time they have called I have cleared the field.”  Today, Mr. Alker has seen 
fit to let the the weeds grow and remain taller than my fence on parts of the property.  I think I may have 
forgotten to send the picture of the tall weeds as they look today.  Either way, I am sending you a picture of 
the tall weeds taken from my back yard showing the weeds are taller than my 5’ 7 1/4 inch fence.   
 
Mr. Alker can not even have the courtesy to mow the property to prevent the risk of fires.  He is intentionally 
causing the property to look bad and he is inviting so called “trespassers” onto the property by letting it look 
the way it does.  He then has the arrogance to say “[O]nce houses have been built the parcel, the threat of fire 
and trespassers will be significantly reduced.”  Clearly, Mr. Alker’s refusal/failure to keep the entire property 
mowed is a way to encourage the neighbors to want to build on the property so they do not have to deal with 
the tall weeds that Mr. Alker himself allows to grow. 
 
Also, the City Council took away El Encanto’s money for a fire house, so the nearest fire house is across the 
101 freeway and they would have to drive through very heavy traffic at times to get to the property.  This 
could be dangerous if Mr. Alker decides he wants to place 214 seniors with possible “mobility” issues on the 
property, along with an additional senior daycare and 70 other houses.  I was told by someone that the 
intersection of Glen Annie and US 101 had a D rating (or it could be a C rating) which was before all the 
proposed added housing, including 1,500 or so housing units at the Glen Annie Golf Course voted on by the 
County.  This also does not include any potential housing at Shelby at 7400 Cathedral Oaks. 
 
Mr. Alker states that “[B]y providing housing to seniors (62+), the traffic impact would be less since seniors are 
less mobile, meaning they drive less.”  There is no guarantee that Mr. Alker will even build a senior facility on 
the property since he previously said the plan was for 214 housing units at the senior living facility for 
Friendship Manor.  Right now, he may only be limited to building 190 housing units.  Further, there are other 
places for Friendship Manor, the senior living facility that Mr. Alker claims he wants to move to the property, 
to buy/rent.  Even if there is a senior living facility, that does not mean the residents will not drive.  There are 
also seniors who would travel to get to the planned daily senior daycare facility, in edition to the staff.  Finally, 
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there would be traffic from the 70 houses Mr. Alker wants to build on the property.  The idea that the amount 
of traffic would not increase is absurd. 
 
I have already addressed the issue of the protected animals found on the property, including Monarch 
butterflies, a Great Egret, whose nests are protected by the California Fish and Wildlife Department and a 
White Tailed Kite.  I have also addressed the issue the property was classified part agricultural long before 
2020, when Mr. Alker claims it was classified as agricultural land. 
 
Further, I have addressed the issue of Mr. Alker’s friends asking why anyone would want to develop “that” 
property.  The statement clearly sounds like it made to convey that they were joking about the viability of 
Kenwood Village and why he would want to build on it. The idea Mr. Alker seems to be twisting the statement 
to sound like his friends were joking because he wanted to add another project to his growing list of 
obligations does not even make sense. 
 
April Reid 
15 Baker Lane 
Goleta, CA. 93117 









From: Paulette Le Blanc <p.leblanc@verizon.net>  
Sent: Saturday, December 2, 2023 1:00 PM 
To: Andy Newkirk <anewkirk@cityofgoleta.org> 
Subject: Kenwood Village Opposition 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

As a homeowner in the city of Goleta who regularly walks the neighborhood between 
Glenn Annie and Winchester Canyon Roads, I am appalled at the thought of 190 units 
being added to the property between the 7-11 on Calle Real and Baker Lane. It seems 
self-evident, but the issues/problems I see include: 
 
- Currently, there is NOT a sidewalk in that area and Calle Real is only one lane in each 
direction  
- There is not room to widen the road, add a sidewalk and/or add bike lanes in each 
direction 
- This stretch of road has had a # of accidents (including death) because of this lack - 
most recently, last week 
 
- Calle Real is extremely busy during the morning and evening rush hours 
- Adding more cars will exacerbate this situation and greatly impact public safety 
 
- Adding 190 units of a parcel of <10 acres will negatively impact the environment and 
the local wildlife 
- There have been a # of mountain lion and coyote sighting in this area during the 
daylight 
- Adding more units will reduce their prey/food supply and increase their encroachment 
into the neighborhood to find food 
- My neighbors have been taking pictures of multiple animals on the Kenwood Village 
property 
- Wildlife they saw include a garter snake, a heron, a hawk and a coyote 
- Photos have been taken of monarchs (which are classified as endangered) and white 
tailed kites (birds) (which are protected)  
 
- As for parking, since a limited number of spaces are allocated for this development, 
the idea of the residential overflow and/or their guests parking in the neighborhood is 
preposterous and will likely result in fighting (possibly literally) for street parking 
 
The City Councilmembers continue to claim in newspaper articles that they will only use 
agricultural land to develop as a last resort.  However, part of Kenwood Village is zoned 
agricultural, not commercial, as the property owner continues to claim.  

I noticed that many of the public's arguments about too much traffic and parking on the 
neighboring streets were dismissed by the City Council.  Even more disturbing, one City 
Councilmember wanted to change the single family housing up against Tuolumne and 

mailto:p.leblanc@verizon.net
mailto:anewkirk@cityofgoleta.org


Baker Lane to high density housing while changing the property near the apartments 
and highway to only single family housing, which is exactly the opposite of what the 
property owner originally drew on his plans for the 60 units.  Did the Councilmember 
come up with the new idea on his own or was this part of the new secret plan drawn by 
the property owner?  If the public does not have access to the drawings/plans, then how 
are we supposed to effectively comment on/object to the rezoning? 
 
I understand the pressure that the City of Goleta is experiencing from the State's 
building mandate, but I implore you to stop this insanity and if this ill-conceived 
development can't be stopped at least re-zone it from high density housing to the 
originally-proposed 60 units. 
 
Paulette Le Blanc 
30 Winchester Canyon Road, Space 64 
Goleta, CA 93117 
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Andy Newkirk

From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 2:38 AM
To: Deborah Lopez; Anne Wells; Andy Newkirk
Subject: Objection to Kenwood Village

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
PART 1 
 
TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AND THE CITY COUNCIL: 
 
This e‐mail will be sent in parts since my computer will only allow me to send a certain amount at a time. 
 
Regarding the contents of the e‐mail below, please be advised that I still do not have complete clarity of the 
meaning of some of the issues included or what they all mean, though I do have a better understanding than I 
did in July 2023 when I first discovered Kenwood Village was up for rezoning/upzoning.  I apologize in advance 
if something does not make complete sense, though I am doing my best.  Also, the number of housing units at 
Kenwood Village has changed from the 60 units, which the property owner had plans for, to 190 units, which 
there are no public plans to view as far as I know. Therefore, it is virtually impossible to make thorough 
arguments/objections to building on/rezoning the property when I have no idea what the property owner will 
actually plan to build.  Currently, the property owner claims he wants to build a senior living facility for 214 
housing units, plus a senior day care with an unknown number of attendees, plus 70 houses.  However, there 
are no known plans for this project.  Also, the project the property owner described contains more housing 
units than the City Council has authorized, which is 190.  I reserve my right to add/change my arguments once 
the property owner discloses what he intends to actually build on the property, assuming the property is 
actually rezoned/upzoned.  This letter includes issues of significant impact to environmental factors that 
would be potentially affected by this project and to Goleta in general involving impacts that are ”Potentially 
Significant Impact”, which are “Significant and unavoidable”.  Significant impact environmental factors listed 
below would be potentially affected by all the new building and rezoning/upzoning for new housing units, 
including but not limited to Kenwood Village located at 7264 Calle Real, Goleta, Ca. 93117 
 
NEW EIR NEEDED 
 
Pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15164(a), “an addendum to a 
previously certified EIR is appropriate if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions 
described in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have 
occurred.”  According to CEQA section 15162 entitled Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations, “(a) When 
an EIR has been certified or a negative declaration adopted for a project, no subsequent EIR shall be prepared 
for that project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in the light of the 
whole record, one or more of the following: (1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will 
require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; (2) 
Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken which will 
require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; or (3) 
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New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been known with the 
exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete or the negative 
declaration was adopted, shows any of the following: (A) The project will have one or more significant effects 
not discussed in the previous EIR or negative declaration; (B) Significant effects previously examined will be 
substantially more severe than shown in the previous EIR; (C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously 
found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant 
effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or D) 
Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the previous EIR 
would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the project proponents 
decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative.”  There are significant changes in Goleta that occurred 
pursuant to the EIR guidelines since the Goleta General Plan/Coastal Land Use Plan was created in September 
2006.  There are also significant changes at Kenwood Villages since the Kenwood Village EIR of June 2016.  As a 
result, a new EIR, rather than just an addendum, is needed. 
 
For example, there has been a significant increase in housing units built/proposed and properties subject to 
rezoning/upzoning since September 2006 in Goleta. There have been well over a thousand, if not many more, 
new housing units built since September 2006. In addition, there are hundreds of housing units proposed to 
be built that do not need to be rezoned. There are also well over 1,000 new housing units proposed for 
rezoning/upzoning to medium density and high density housing in order to build new housing units. (I am not 
sure of the exact totals).  As a result of the effects of all the new housing, proposed housing and 
rezoning/upzoning for new housing since September 2006, there should be a new EIR since the significant 
number of new housing units will significantly impact the City of Goleta. 
 
Further, each individual property that is being rezoned/upzoned, such as Kenwood Village, should be required 
to have a new EIR because of the significantly increased number of housing units on the property and the new 
placement of the housing units from the original plan that contained only 60 units.  At the very least, the 
rezoned/upzoned properties will likely have significantly different developments/plans than they did when 
there was a lower number of properties proposed/planned. As an example, Kenwood Village had an EIR done 
on June 2016 with 60 housing units.  Now, it is being considered for rezoning/upzoning from 60 units to 190 
units, though the property owner is trying to get the number of units increased to 284. This does not even 
take into consideration bonus density.  The development and the environmental impact from the increased 
number of housing units on the property will significantly change from the plans drawn years ago that only 
included 60 units.  Simply by increasing the number of housing units on the property by at least 130, the 
placement of the housing units will have to change.  This should require a new EIR. 
  
Further, the significantly increased number of housing units in Goleta, and at Kenwood Village will significantly 
affect the traffic/roadways in Goleta in general and at Kenwood Village specifically. Unfortunately, there has 
not been a recent traffic study to determine the affects of the significantly increased traffic.  In fact, the 
Kenwood EIR from 2016, which was completed when there were only 60 housing units proposed, states that 
the U.S. 101 southbound ramps at Storke Road “exceed the City’s acceptable operating standards in peak A.M. 
and F.M. hours. Further, the Hollister Avenue and Storke Road intersection “exceeds the City’s acceptable 
operating standards in the peak P.M. hours.”  It is my understanding from the previous traffic report done 
years ago, the intersections were rated as a D, or at best a C. This study does not even take into account all the 
recent, additional proposed housing units on both sides of the freeway and the rezoning/upzoning for 
additional housing units.  Glen Annie is an on/offramp to a freeway and it would take a lot of work and money 
to add on and offramp lanes.  It will also be difficult to add lanes to Calle Real at the Glen Annie 
intersection.  It will also be difficult to add lanes at the Hollister and Storke Road intersection. There are 
currently multiple new sites in the area being proposed, including the Glen Annie Golf Course, with a possible 
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1,536 new housing units and maybe Shelby with a minimum of 60 plus housing units. There are also new 
housing units proposed at Colusa with 39 and Kenwood Village with a minimum of 190 new units. Then there 
are multiple housing units proposed at or near Hollister between the Glen Annie and Storke Road on/offramp 
and Winchester.  These figures do not even take into account bonus density. Both of these intersections will 
have possibly thousands of additional vehicles.  All of theses traffic issues will only get significantly worse with 
an extensive amount of additional traffic through all of Goleta, including but not limited to the west side 
between the Glen Annie and Storke Road on/offramp and the Winchester Canyon on/offramp.  Also, the 
nearest fire station to Kenwood Village will have fire trucks traveling through both intersections to arrive at 
Kenwood Village or any other place in El Encanto Heights/Dos Pueblos, including Glen Annie Golf Course.  The 
City should require a EIR, as well as new traffic studies, which include potential housing from the County, to 
determine if the highly increased traffic that would occur would significantly impact traffic and emergency 
services. 
 
The significantly increased number of housing units/proposed housing units and rezoned properties will also 
significantly affect any creeks in Goleta, including El Encanto Creek at Kenwood Village. Increased 
housing/rezoning for increased housing can significantly affect the protected/endangered animals living 
at/near the creeks. Increased housing units proposed on a property will likely affect a property owner’s 
decision to try to decrease the buffer from 100” to 50” in order to fit all of the increased housing units onto 
the property. It is my understanding the property owner at Kenwood Village wants to reduce the buffer at the 
creek from 100” to 50”. 
 
Increased housing will also significantly affect the animals, including the protected animals, in Goleta and on 
Kenwood Village. For example, on Kenwood Village, there are multiple additional animals, including protected 
animals, at the opposite end of the protected El Encanto Creek near the Baker Lane side of the property that 
were not identified in the original 2016 EIR.  For example, monarch butterflies were photographed on the 
property.  There was also a Great Egret photographed on the property, whose nests are protected by the CA. 
Department of Fish and Wildlife. Further, the Autobon Society documented a White Tailed Kite on/at the 
property. There are also, skunks, rabbits, raccoons, opossums, snakes, butterflies, coyotes, voles and gophers 
on the Baker Lane sided of the property, some of whom were not mentioned in the 2016 EIR.  In addition, 
coyotes, bears and other wildlife have now started coming into the communities for food. 
 
Further, Goleta has gone through multiple long droughts.  According to the Goleta Water District Website, we 
are still in a Stage III drought.  Even if the Goleta Water District claims they can provide water for all the 
proposed new housing units, this will only affect the ability of all Goleta residents to get water.  It was only 
very recently that people were fined for using too much water due to the drought.  It is not fair to force Goleta 
residents to endure a significantly longer drought due to the extensive new number of housing units being 
built/proposed or the rezoning/upzoning of property to build new housing. 
 
We also need a new EIR to determine how the significant increase in housing/proposed housing and 
rezoning/upzoning throughout Goleta will affect air quality and climate change.   
For all of these reasons and many more, a new EIR, rather than just an addendum, is warranted.   
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Andy Newkirk

From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 2:40 AM
To: Deborah Lopez; Anne Wells; Andy Newkirk
Cc: aprilreid@cox.net
Subject: Objection to Kenwood Village

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
PART 2 
 
AESTHETICS 
 
The community surrounding Kenwood Village consists of suburban mostly single family, single story houses 
with a few two story houses sprinkled in.  Mr. Alker plans to build a 190 unit monstrosity on 6.63 acres of the 
property that would NOT fit in with the aesthetics of the remainder of the community. Even worse, he is 
fighting to build 284 housing units on 9.4 acres of the property. This will only be worse with bonus density. 
This monstrosity will only become an eye sore compared to the rest of the beautiful El Encanto Heights/Dos 
Pueblos area. Further, according to Google, aesthetics includes problems with “congestion and 
pollution”.  The current rezoning/upzoning of Kenwood Village allows for 190 housing units, but the property 
owner is attempting to increase the number of housing units to 284.  This does not even include bonus 
density.  Kenwood Village is located in a suburban area with fresh air and no smog.  However, there are no 
real job opportunities or stores located near it.  Further, the bus system is not practical or nearby Kenwood 
Village.  Thus, the increased congestion and pollution from the significantly increased traffic will be harmful to 
the current residents and any new residents at Kenwood Village.   
 
HEIGHT 
 
The Housing Element Plan states, “[A]s defined in Title 17, height is measured as the vertical distance between 
the existing grade and the uppermost point of the roof of the structure directly above that grade, including 
mechanical equipment. A maximum height of 25 feet (Coastal Zone) to 35 feet (Inland Area) is permitted in 
the City’s multi‐unit districts. All of the non‐residential districts allowing mixed‐use development allow heights 
up to 35 feet, with the exception of the OT district. When the entire roof of the structure exhibits a pitch of 
4:12 (rise to run) or greater, an additional 3 feet may be added to the applicable height limit. Additionally, per 
GMC Section 17.24.080, architectural, decorative, and open space features may project above the maximum 
height. Permitted projections include an additional 20 percent of the structure height for architectural 
features, such as spires, bell towers, and domes; chimneys; decorative features such as cupolas, pediments, 
obelisks, and monuments; and roof‐top open space features such as sun decks, sunshade and windscreen 
devices, open trellises, and landscaping. Based on previous development, three‐story development is viable 
with a base 35‐foot height standard. Several recent developments (see Table 10A‐29) have included three‐
story Goleta General Plan/Coastal Land Use Plan 10A Housing Element Technical Appendix Draft – November 
2023 10A‐33 structures, including Heritage Ridge, Old Town Village, Village at Los Carneros, and Hollister 
Village. However, the Coastal Zone height limit of 25 feet in the residential districts may pose an impediment 
to development at the maximum density. The majority of residential development in residential districts has 
occurred within the Inland Area, with higher height standards. Additionally, the City’s site inventory includes 
many sites within the OT zone district, with a maximum height of 30 feet. This may cause challenges in 
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developing three‐story mixed‐use redevelopment in this zone. Housing Plan subprogram HE 2.1(h) is included 
to implement revisions to Title 17 and the General Plan to increase height maximums in these four zones/land 
use designations to 35 feet in all locations.” The height allowance is too tall for the area.  It will deprive citizens 
of their views of the mountains, the ocean, and the rest of the beauty that is Goleta.  For example, building on 
Kenwood Village will deprive myself and some of my neighbors of the views we have enjoyed for decades, 
including views of the beautiful mountains that the Goleta citizens have come to enjoy.  It also does not fit in 
with the mostly single story housing surrounding Kenwood Village.  As a result, any height allowance should be 
lowered in places where the current residents would have their views of the mountains completely 
eliminated. 
 
AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY 
 
This issue has been addressed in previous e‐mails. 
 
LAND USE/PLANNING 
 
This issue has been addressed in previous e‐mails.  Rezoning Kenwood Village would require changing a 
portion of the property from agriculture to high density housing.  In the past, the land has been used to 
successfully grow tomatoes and pumpkins.  The City Council has expressed that they would only rezone 
agricultural land as a last resort, yet they are voting to rezone/upzone Kenwood Village when there are 
multiple properties that are not zoned agricultural that the City Council could have picked to rezone/upzone. 
 
POPULATION AND HOUSNG 
 
The significant increase of housing in Goleta, including at El Encanto Heights/Dos Pueblos and Kenwood Village 
will significantly increase the population of the City, especially the suburban area of El Encanto Heights/Dos 
Pueblos. Currently, the City is planning to include over a thousand new housing units.  At El Encanto 
Heights/Dos Pueblos alone, there are at least 190 units proposed at Kenwood Village, though it could be 
increased to 284 plus bonus density, as well as 39 housing units at Colusa.  This does not even include the 
1,536 added housing units at Glen Annie Golf Course from the County of Santa Barbara or the possible 
minimum number of 60 housing units at Shelby, though the owners are asking for more housing units.  This is 
a lot of increased population for a small, suburban area which will affect traffic, air pollution, water 
accessibility and the wildlife, including the protected wildlife, on Kenwood Village and in the area.   
 
UTILITIES/SERVICE SYSTEMS 
 
This issue was addressed previously.  Please also see the 36 page report from Rich Foster posted on the Goleta 
public comment section which I have incorporated into my e‐mail. 
 
MINERAL RESOURCES 
 
Any mineral resources found on the property should be protected. 
 
AIR QUALITY 
 
The air quality will become significantly worse if there is a substantial increase in the number of housing units 
in Goleta, including at El Encanto Heights.  This includes issues stemming from a significantly increased 
number of people, housing and vehicles, which would cause significantly increased air pollution and climate 
change.   
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BIOLOGY RESOURCES/WILDLIFE/CREEK BUFFER 
 
The Goleta Housing Element Plan states, “[I]n Goleta and surrounding areas, nineteen habitat types support a 
variety of plant communities and wildlife. Most of the land within the City is developed with a variety of 
agricultural, residential, commercial, recreational, and industrial land uses. Undisturbed native habitat is 
present in the mountain region where the national forest provides protection from development. Elsewhere, 
undisturbed native habitat is present either along narrow riparian corridors or in scattered undeveloped lands 
of varying sizes and under different management authorities.”  There are multiple protected animals in 
Goleta, some of whom found their habitat after the 2006 General Plan was prepared.  Further, there have 
been multiple protected animals found at both the protected creek and at the opposite end of the property 
near Baker Lane on Kenwood Village after the 2016 EIR was prepared.  As a result, it is very important that the 
buffer at the creek not be decreased below 100 feet as it seems Mr. Alker is attempting to do.  Also, there was 
wildlife, including protected wildlife, found on the opposite side of Kenwood Village from Baker Lane since the 
2016 RIE report, including Monarch butterflies, White Tailed Hawks, Turkey Vultures, House Finches, and 
Great Egrets, whose nests are protected by the CA. Department of Fish and Wildlife, all of which were 
addressed in earlier e‐mails.   
 
OPEN SPACE 
 
Building well over a thousand new housing units will deprive Goleta of much needed open space.  There are 
multiple wild animals in Goleta that use the open spaces as food source as stated above.  Also, if Mr. Alker is 
allowed to build on Kenwood Village he should be required to maintain whatever open space is legally 
required for the property in order to build. 
 
GEOLOGY/SOILS 
 
The property is subject to earthquakes, so any property needs to be built with extra precautions.  Further, as 
previously addressed, the property is subject to flooding, especially near the El Encanto Creek. Mr. Alker 
should not be allowed to build on the section of the property that floods.  However, if he is allowed to build on 
that section of the property, then precautions should be taken to prevent flood damage, including but not 
limited to reenforcing any pipes/sewer pipes/drainage ditches, etc.  I have already incorporated the entire 36 
page e‐mail from Rich Foster posted on or about August 16, 2023 which discusses various issues.   
 
OIL, GAS OR WELLS 
 
In a letter dated November 9, 2023 from Jon Iverson of the California Department of Conservation, he stated, 
“[L]ocal permitting agencies, property owners, and/or developers should be aware of, and fully understand, 
that significant and potentially dangerous issues may be associated with development near oil, gas or 
geothermal wells. . . To assist local permitting agencies, property owners, and developers in making wise land 
use decisions regarding potential development near oil, gas or geothermal wells, CalGEM provides 
information.”  The information is listed in the above‐referenced letter.  Mr. Alker should follow any 
requirements/guidelines in determining if there are any oil, gas or geothermal wells on Kenwood Village.  If 
there are, than he should be required to follow any and all steps to ensure the safety of the residents in the 
community, including any new residents who would live at Kenwood Village.  I am submitting the letter 
written by Jon Iverson.   
 
GREENHIUSE GASES 
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The significant increased number of houses in Goleta will contribute to serious climate change 
issues/problems, including greenhouse gas. 
 
EMISSIONS 
 
The significant increased number of houses and vehicles in Goleta stemming from the significant increased 
housing units will cause an increase in unhealthy, dangerous emissions. 
 
HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 
The Housing Element Plan states, “[T]he State of California defines a hazardous material as a substance that is 
toxic, ignitable or flammable, or reactive and/or corrosive. Goleta has a history of urban uses, including 
extensive and diverse industrial, commercial, agricultural, and residential uses. These activities have resulted 
in known contaminant releases occurring at active remediation sites, some closed sites, and a number of 
properties that can be considered high risk for contamination based on historic or current land 
uses.  Historically, extensive areas of the City were used for oil and gas production, notably in the western 
coastal portions of the City. Remnants of this activity may have left behind toxic wastes and wellheads that 
could pose significant hazards for new residential and recreational activities.  Development proposals in these 
areas must be closely examined to ensure that these potential.” If hazardous materials are present on any 
properties rezoned/upzoned, including Kenwood Village, the property owners should be required to clean it 
up/remove it before building.  Otherwise, the property owner should not be allowed to build. 
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Andy Newkirk

From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 2:44 AM
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
PART 3 
 
HYDROLOGY/WATER RESOURCES 
 
This issue has been addressed in previous e‐mails.  Lake Cachuma remains our main/primary/maybe close to 
only water source.  Goleta has had severe droughts off and on for many years. In fact, the Goleta Water 
District has only recently stopped penalizing citizens whose water use Goleta deems excessive. The Goleta 
Water District website currently states, “[W]e are encouraged by the recent winter rains, but Lake Cachuma is 
still below 50%. Even with conservation the Goleta Valley remains in severe drought.  Reducing outdoor 
watering now conserves water for public health and safety.  The District remains under a Stage III drought 
emergency.”  Goleta has added multiple new housing units in the past several years and the City is not even 
sure how those housing units will affect the amount of water Goleta needs.  Adding possibly thousands of 
additional new housing units, not including the housing units from Santa Barbara County, such as Glen Annie 
Golf Course, could be a catastrophe in terms of supplying water to Goleta residents, even if the Goleta Water 
District claims they will hand out more permits soon.  This will likely only leave Goleta in a worse 
drought.  Further, if the Goleta Water District hands out permits, then the first people in line should only be 
given permits for the number of housing units they applied for.  For example, presumably Mr. Alker applied for
water for 60 units, not 190 or 284.  Mr. Alker should only be given water for the 60 units he applied for before 
the next people in line are given permits.  He should have to start at the back of the line for any additional 
permits over 60 housing units.  Otherwise, it would not be fair to the other people waiting in line for permits.   
 
TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC 
 
The Goleta General Plan/Coastal Land Use Plan for September 2016 states the objective in mitigating traffic 
impacts of development is ”[t]o ensure that new development is supported by adequate capacities in 
transportation systems, including city streets and roads, without reducing the quality of service coexisting 
residents, commuters, and other users of the city street system. . .Future development in Goleta will cause 
added burdens on the transportation system.  Traffic analysis and reports SHALL be required for development 
proposals which the City Engineer and Planning Director determine may have effects on the local street 
system, including but not limited to possible degradation of service levels, potential creation of safety hazards, 
potential adverse effects on local neighborhood streets, or other substantial transportation concerns... New 
development shall only be allowed when and where such development can be adequately (as defined by the 
LOS standards in Policy TE4) served by existing and/or planned transportation facilities.”  This issue has been 
addressed previously.  There should be traffic studies completed before rezoning/upzoning over a thousand 
additional housing units to determine whether the additional traffic will substantially harm the community. 
For example, at Kenwood Village, the street entrance to the property, Calle Real, is a dangerous road with one 
narrow lane of traffic in each direction.  There have been many accidents/fatalities on the road.  Also, there is 
a freeway on one side of the road and housing on the other side of the road, so there is no way to widen the 
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road.  As a result, there is no adequate, safe street at Kenwood Village, as stated below.  Further, regarding 
the US 101 Freeway and Calle Real intersection and the Hollister and Storke Road intersection, it is my 
understanding from the previous traffic report done years ago, they were rated as a D, or at best a C. In fact, 
the Kenwood EIR  from 2026 states that the U.S. 101 southbound ramps at Storke Road “exceed the City’s 
acceptable operating standards in peak A.M.and F.M. hours.”  Further, the Hollister Avenue and Storke Road 
intersection “exceeds the City’s acceptable operating standards in the peak P.M. hours. This study does not 
even take into account the additional proposed housing units on both sides of the freeway.  Glen Annie is an 
on/offramp to a freeway and it would take a lot of work and money to add on an additional lane for the 
offramp.  It will also be difficult to add lanes to Calle Real at the intersection, as well as Storke Road.  If it is 
even possible, Mr. Alker should be required to construct the necessary transportation system improvements 
to reduce traffic and the possibility of increased fatalities/accidents.  Otherwise, he should be required to 
construct transportation improvements or identify alternative strategies, such as transit improvements, 
improving signalization, improving other streets, adding pedestrian or bicycle improvements, etc. to mitigate 
potential traffic impacts.  Now, there has been significantly more building in the area and more traffic.  In 
addition, there are currently multiple new sites in the area being proposed, including the Glen Annie Golf 
Coarse, with a possible 1,536 new housing units, in addition to Shelby with at least 60 new housing units, 
though the owners want to increase the number.  This is in additional to 39 new housing units at Colusa and a 
minimum of 190 housing units at Kenwood Village.  All of this does not even include bonus density.  Then, 
there are multiple housing units proposed at or near Hollister between the Glen Annie and Storke Road 
on/offramp and Winchester.  Both of these intersections will have possibly thousands of additional vehicles, 
which will have a significant impact on the community. Even worse, the City Council recently took away the 
money for a fire station in El Encanto Heights/Dos Pueblos. Since the nearest fire engine to El Encanto 
Heights/Dos Pueblos and Kenwood Village will have to travel through both intersections to arrive at Kenwood 
Village or any other place in El Encanto Heights/Dos Pueblos, including Glen Annie Golf Course, there is a 
potential for significantly increased traffic accidents, in addition to tragedies if the fire trucks are delayed in 
getting to an emergency due to traffic issues.  The City should require a new traffic study which includes 
potential housing from the County to determine if the highly increased traffic that would occur can be 
accommodated safely.  I am submitting a section of the September 2006 Goleta General Plan/Coastal Land 
Use Plan referencing traffic. 
 
NO ADEQUATE/SAFE ENTRANCE FROM CALLE REAL TO KENWOOD VILLAGE 
 
Kenwood Village is located between Baker Lane and El Encanto Creek, which is a protected creek that includes 
protected animals.  The entrance to Kenwood Village is originally designed to be on Calle Real, which is the 
only realistic entrance for the property.  There is also a very small entrance located off of Tuolumne which is 
currently several feet higher than the ground of the Kenwood Village property, and there is a steep slope 
between the street and Kenwood Village which would need to be filled in if the property owner wants to use it 
only for emergency vehicles, which was his original plan. Calle Real has one, narrow lane of traffic in each 
direction.  There are also bike paths on both sides of the street.  On the Baker Lane side of the property, there 
is a blind curve after Baker Lane at Kenwood Village.  Vehicles tend to travel quickly on the Calle Real road, 
even though the speed limit is only 45 miles per hour.  There is a visible freeway running parallel to Calle Real 
on one side.  There is housing on the other.  Many the vehicles on Calle Real drive at the speed of the vehicles 
on the freeway.  There is also no room for a right turn lane into Kenwood Village.  However, even if there was 
room to put a right turn lane, it is dangerous to put an entrance at the blind curve next to the Baker Lane side 
of Kenwood Village since vehicles will likely be traveling quickly and not realize there is a right turn lane at the 
blind curve until it is too late.  This could cause even more accidents that there already are.  Unfortunately, on 
the Creek side of the property, the property owner designed the old plans wherein part of the access road 
would encroach on the 100‐foot SPA.  A letter from Paula Richter of Central Coast Regional Water Quality 
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Control Board states, ‘“[T]he Environmental Review findings section at paragraph 3 discusses the potential to 
reduce the 100‐foot SPA adjacent to El Encanto Creek.  We encourage the developer to design their project to 
avoid the need to reduce the 100‐foot SPA.  Figure 3.4‐2 (Site Plan) reflects that a significant portion of an 
access road encroaches on the 100‐foot SPA, along with one single family residential unit."  As such, there is 
no safe entrance to Kenwood Village from Calle Real.  There are also no sidewalks along Calle Real at Kenwood 
Village.  I am submitting a picture of the blind curve at Calle Real from Baker Lane.  I am also submitting the 
July 1, 2016 letter from Paula Richter. 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES AND RECREATION 
 
This issue has been addressed previously.  El Encanto Heights/Dos Pueblos does not have its own fire 
department, though it is my understanding that the City and County recommended a fire department in this 
area before building would/should occur.  The City took the money for a fire house in this area and gave it to 
Old Town.  Further, the nearest fire department would have to pass through two already overcrowded 
intersections to get to the area. Also, as stated above, there are no real jobs or stores in the area, so people 
will be fired to drive everywhere.  Unfortunately, the bus services are sparse in/near Kenwood Village and 
people would have to travel a great distance to get to a bus stop from Kenwood Village, so using the bus is not 
practical at El Encanto Height/Dos Pueblos.   
  
NOISE 
 
The Housing Element Plan states, “[T}he Noise Element describes noise constraints on new residential 
development. The policies of the Noise Element are intended to protect public welfare. While they may 
increase the cost of new development and could require some design mitigation to address potential impacts, 
they are considered essential to the health and safety of future residents.”  Kenwood Village is located next to 
Baker Lane, a quiet one block suburban street consisting of single family houses. In fact, other than a small 
apartment building next to 4 small stores and a 7‐11, the entire community consists of quiet, suburban 
generally single story, single family housing with a few two story single family houses sprinkled in. On the 
other side of my house from Kenwood Village is a protected creek.  I was born into my house 55 years 
ago.  Even with added building of single family homes throughout the years, it has always been a quiet 
community.  The idea of placing a 190 unit monstrosity on around 6 plus acres will destroy the peace and 
quiet of our beautiful community.  The noise will also affect the multiple birds, butterflies and land animals on 
the property which I have mentioned previously, including but not limited to butterflies, including Monarch 
butterflies, Great Egrets, whose nests are protected by the Ca. Fish and wildlife Department, White Tailed 
Kites, Turkey Vultures, Hose Finches, Red Tailed Hawks, snakes, skunks, rabbits, chipmunks, opossums, 
raccoons, voles and gophers, among many other animals, some of whom were not listed in the 2016 EIR 
report for Kenwood Village. 
 
PRIVACY FOR INDIVIDUAL UNITS/ 20 FOOT GAP 
 
The Housing Element Plan states, “[Site design, including placement of structures, pedestrian circulation, and 
common areas, as well as elements of architectural design such as placement of windows, must strive to 
maintain privacy for individual dwelling units within multifamily projects, including privacy for individual 
exterior spaces, to the extent possible with consideration for security and crime prevention.”  Further, the 
Housing Element Plan only allows for a 20 foot buffer between the surrounding houses and the proposed 
housing units. It is impossible to know what the property owner will design for the property now that the 
number of housing units has increased from 60 units to at lease 190 unit, which does no even include bonus 
density.  Mr. Alker is also only allowed to build on 6.6 or so acres. 



4

It is highly likely the new housing units will be built as close to the surrounding houses, including my house and 
rental house, as possible; i.e. with only a 20 foot buffer.  The windows from the second story housing units will 
likely have full view to the windows and inside the house of myself and my tenants at the rental property next 
door.  The occupants of the Kenwood Village units would then have full view of bathrooms and/or bedrooms 
of the houses.  This is especially creepy on the occasions when I am renting to tenants with small children, 
regardless of who the Kenwood Village occupants are. 
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Andy Newkirk

From: april reid <aprilreid@live.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 2:47 AM
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
PART 4 
 
HIGHWAY RAIL CROSSINGS 
 
On May 16, 2016, Ken Chiang from the Public Utilities Commission stated regarding Kenwood Village, 
“‘[A]ccording to the DSEIR, the project area includes active railroad tracks owned by the Union Pacific Railway 
Company.  RCEB recommends the the City add language to the Kenwood Village General Plan so that any 
future development adjacent to or near the rail right‐of ‐way (ROW) is planned with the safety of all the rail 
corridor in mind.  New developments may increase traffic volumes not only on streets and at intersections, 
but also at at‐grade crossings.  This includes considering pedestrian circulation patterns or destinations with 
respect to railroad ROW and compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Mitigation measures to 
consider include the planning for grade separations for major thoroughfares, improvements to existing at‐
grade crossings due to increase in traffic volumes and continuous vandal resistant fencing or other 
appropriate barriers to prevent trespassers onto the railroad ROW.”  If the Kenwood Village project is allowed 
to proceed, the Public Utilities Commission requests should be followed.  I am submitting the May 16, 2016 
Public Utilities Commission letter. 
 
INDIAN LAND 
 
The issue of possible Indian burial grounds on the property was addressed in an earlier  e‐mail. 
 
PARKING 
 
The issue of parking was addressed in previous e‐mails.  Kenwood Village is surrounded on one side by a 
protected creek, one side by Calle Real, one side by Baker Lane, a PRIVATE street and one side by Tuolumne, a 
narrow, curvy street that already has many vehicles that park the street.  Kenwood Village should be 
responsible for providing its own parking units. The number of required parking units at Kenwood Village 
should not be decreased.In fact, the number of parking spaces should be increased to protect the surrounding 
neighborhood from having to endure a massive flood of additional vehicles.  For example, the number of guest 
parking spaces per unit should be increased from one parking space for every three housing units to one 
parking space for every two units.  Also, the number of parking spaces for studio and one unit housing should 
not be reduced.  The surrounding area should not have to bear the burden of having to deal with the vehicles 
from Kenwood Village. 
 
PRESCRIPTIVE EASMENT 
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In California, a user of land may establish a prescriptive easement by proving that his or her use of another’s 
land was: (1) continuous and uninterrupted for five years; (2) open and notorious; and (3) hostile. A 
prescriptive easement allows non‐owners to gain the legal right to use a part of someone else's 
property.  Since I was a child, my family and I, as well as many other people, used the well worn walking path 
between the back yard of the houses on Tuolumne and my rental property at 17 Baker Lane.  Further, we also 
used the path along the back of the houses on Baker Lane, as well as the path behind the houses at Tuolumne 
from Baker Lane to 7‐11.  With the building of housing on Baker Lane, Violet and Daffodil in around 2002, even 
more people used the paths on Kenwood Village; a private property. To date, there are well worn shoe prints 
and a lot of dog droppings all along these paths. In an article written by the property owner in the 
Independent called Setting The Record Straight dated November 17, 2023, Mr. Alker called all of us 
“trespassers.”  He stated, “[O]nce houses have been built on the parcel, the threat of fire and trespassers will 
be significantly reduced.”  These well worn paths should be preserved for the multitude of people who use 
them.   
 
Further, according to the old plans for 60 units on Kenwood Village, Mr. Alker planned to build a bike path at 
the well travelled northeast corner of the property which would lead into three PRIVATE streets, including 
Baker Lane, Daffodil and Violet.  These streets are not meant for public use. 
 
In addition, there is a road that is north of the three PRIVATE streets that runs behind Tuolumne that connects 
the three PRIVATE streets. This street is where the bike path from Kenwood Village would lead people from 
between the back of Tuolumne and the side of my rental property onto the three PRIVATE streets. Since 
before I was born 55 years ago, my parents and great‐grandmother used the land as a roadway from our 
houses to what is now Daffodil Lane and then to Calle Real. Our original mailbox was located at the corner of 
what is now Daffodil and Calle Real. At first, it was a dirt road.  Then, several decades ago, my step‐father 
paved the self‐made road with concrete.  Around the time the additional houses were built on the PRIVATE 
streets, the road was paved with asphalt.  At this point, there does not appear to be enough room to build a 
bike path next to the paved road for vehicles to use, even if that was acceptable on a PRIVATE street.  The bike 
path should not interfere with the street north of the three PRIVATE streets which has been in existence in 
one form or another for over 55 years.   
 
I WAS DEPRIVED OF THE OPPORTUNITY TO PARTICIPATE IN WORKSHOPS/SOME PUBLIC COMMENT EAARLY 
ON WHEN SOE ISSUES WERE BEING RESOLVED 
 
I was deprived of the opportunity to appear at many of the City Council meetings for the Housing Element 
Plan for public comment, especially early on when so many issues were being discussed/agreed upon. I was 
also deprived of the opportunity to participate in the three workshops held by the City.  On 9/16/20, after I 
reviewed the Housing Element Plan on‐line, I discovered for the first time the Kenwood Village, located at 
7264 Calle Real, was on a list of Housing Element Vacant Sites. I was not clear about why it was on the list of 
sites or the purpose of the sites.  So, n 9/16/20, I wrote an e‐mail to Anne Wells, a staff member for the City of 
Goleta, stating, “I am writing to you because I am not sure who to write to. You were the one who gave the 
report on the Housing issues at the City council meeting I watched last night. I also read the report that is on‐
line. I was confused and alarmed that Kenwood Village was including on page 14 of the report on the City's list 
of Housing Element Vacant Sites. I do not know how Kenwood Village was able to get on the list. I noticed that 
not all pending developments that are waiting for water or for approval are on the list, so I am not clear how 
Kenwood Village was one of the developments that was chosen to be placed on the list. Did the City pick 
Kenwood Village or did the developer chose to be on the list? I am also confused about how it was decided the 
maximum number of units was adjusted from 28 to 22. Was that a compromise enforced by the City in order 
for Kenwood Village to go forward? Was that something that the developer modified on his own? The last 
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time I spoke to the developer, he refused to change anything unless the City forced him to do so.  Further, I 
noticed that Kenwood Village was listed as an above‐ moderate site. However, it seemed in the meeting that 
Goleta had enough above‐moderate sites. Does the number of approved above‐moderate sites include or 
exclude Kenwood Village in the count of the number of above‐moderate sites counted in Goleta?  Finally, the 
last time I heard about Kenwood Village, it was my understanding that the project was on hold due to a water 
moratorium.  I feel like I may have missed something.  Can you or someone in your office please clarify? Thank 
you for your help.”  On 9/17/20, Ms. Wells responded, “The Kenwood Village site has long been on our 
Housing Element vacant site inventory because the site is vacant and has residential zoning and a residential 
land use designation. The Housing Element Table 10A‐33 you refer to includes an estimate of the number of 
units that the site might be able to accommodate. Kenwood was one of 24 sites included in the vacant sites 
table. Please note that the estimate was prepared independent from the housing development proposal and is 
included in the table as part of the Housing Element process, not a project approval process. The State 
requires that the City identify vacant, residentially zoned sites and estimate the number of possible units that 
could be built on the site. It is not a project approval but instead accounting of our vacant land inventory for 
the State to review and certify. Proposed development go through the permit process and I copied Lisa Prasse 
and Peter Imho to provide you with an update of the development proposal. I hope this clears up the 
difference between the Housing Element table and any future project application on the site.”  I am 
submitting the e‐mails between myself and Me. Wells. Ms. Wells did not mention the Housing Element Plan 
had any effect on Kenwood Village at all.  Essentially, she stated it was just a basic accounting of inventory and 
that it did not mean anything since it was not a project approval process.  There was no mention that the 
Housing Development Plan would have any effect on the Kenwood Village Project, including but limited to 
upzoning/rezoning from agricultural land and single family housing to high density housing. If I had known the 
Housing Element Plan would any effect on Kenwood Village whatsoever, I would have absolutely attending the 
City Council meetings and all three workshops.  I am submitting thee‐mails between myself and Ms. Anne 
Wella   
 
Regarding participation, the Housing Element Plan states, “S”tate law requires that local governments make a 
diligent effort to achieve public participation of all 
economic segments of the community in the development of the Housing Element, and the element shall 
describe this effort (California Government Code Section 65583(c)(8)).” However, shortly thereafter the e‐
mails mentioned above were sent, I spoke to Ms. Wells on the telephone. She told me that she supported the 
Kenwood Village project, but the new City Council would not vote to build on it.  As a result, I did not attend 
the City Council meetings for the Housing Element Plan because I was deceived into thinking it would not 
mean anything. I also was deprived of the opportunity to have any input into the development of the Housing 
Element Plan in the developmental stage.  I was also deprived of the opportunity to attend the three 
workshops The Housing Element Plan describes which wee held after 9/17/20, when the e‐mails were 
sent.  The dates and descriptions of the workshops were as follows: “Public workshops. Three public 
workshops open to all interested persons were conducted during preparation of the Draft Housing Element. 
Goleta General Plan/Coastal Land Use Plan 10A Housing Element Technical Appendix Draft – November 2023 
10A‐109 Workshop #1 – September 7, 2021. This City Council workshop included review of the RHNA process, 
Housing Element requirements, key issues to be addressed, and the overall schedule for the 6th cycle Housing 
Element update. Workshop #2 – March 14, 2022. At this public workshop, the City presented an overview of 
the Housing Element update process and requirements, a summary of housing accomplishments and 
challenges during the previous planning period, and the key housing issues expected for the 2023‐2031 
planning period. Participants were encouraged to identify specific issues, needs and potential strategies to 
address those needs and suggest appropriate locations where additional housing development should be 
encouraged. Notice of the workshop was posted on the Housing Element website and distributed to everyone 
on the email notification lists described above in English and Spanish 6 days prior to the workshop. 
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Interpretation services in Spanish were available during the workshop. Workshop #3 – June 22, 2022. The City 
participated in a South Coast Housing Element Workshop that brought together the Cities of Goleta, 
Carpinteria, and Santa Barbara and the County of Santa Barbara to discuss each jurisdiction’s Housing Element 
process, regional housing needs, and local challenges. The event included a panel discussion and breakout 
groups for each jurisdiction.”  As a result, I still have some confusion about what the process is and what some 
of the teas are. 
The first time I discovered the City Council was considering rezoning Kenwood Village was July 14, 2023, when 
there was a very vague Notice sent out to the Public regarding “Zoning”.  When I looked at the Housing 
Element Plan, I was shocked to discover the City Council increased the number of housing units on the 
property to 284. I was also shocked to discover the staff had consulted with the various property owners to 
determine if they were willing to build 20 to 30 units per acre on  their respective properties.  Only AFTER the 
various property owners were contacted by the Staff and the vast majority of them agreed to build high 
density housing was the overall agreement/plan to rezone/upzone announced to the public. 
 
Further, there is no indication of how the various sites, including Kenwood Village, were picked to 
rezone/upzone. The Housing Element Plan states, “[T]he City has identified a number of vacant and 
underutilized sites with development potential over the Housing Element planning period.  Existing available 
sites not identified for rezoning can accommodate 1,496 units, primarily appropriate to facilitate moderate 
and above moderate income units (140 lower income; 641 moderate income; and 715 above moderate 
income). The remaining RHNA of 597 lower income units are to be accommodated on sites identified for 
rezoning to medium and high density residential uses through RM, RH, and CC zoning.  I received an e‐mail 
from Councilmember Kasdin stating, “As for an agreement, all staff can do is encourage the landowner to seek 
a project that is 20‐30 units per acre.  They needed to get letters from the landowner indicating that the 
landowner wanted the project.”  I am not sure if the only thing the City staff did in considering which sites to 
include was to simply find property owners who were willing to sign a letter saying they wanted a project that 
would have 20‐30 units per acre. I have repeatedly asked the City staff to tell me who determined if a site had 
development potential and/or rezoning/upzoning potential; when was the determination made, and how was 
the determination made, I.e. what criteria was used to make the decision.  To date, I have not received a 
response. 
 
SOME RESPONSES TO FOIA REQUESTS HAVE NOT BEEN PRODUCED AND ARE OVERDUE 
 
The City of Goleta website states, “[R]equests that are not exempt from disclosure, that require research, 
retrieval, and reproduction will be provided at the earliest date possible, and in any case, within 24 days. 
Further, The City Council sent me a letter about future requests as follows, “[T]he purpose of this e‐mail is to 
provide an additional batch of responsive records to your public request submitted to the City Clerk’s office on 
October 16, 2023, and clarified on October 25, 2023.  The City of Goleta previously provided responses to your 
request on November 2, 2023, November 16, 2023, and November 29, 2023. In response to the batch 
provided on November 29, 2023, you requested a letter dated March 3, 2020.  Attached is the City’s 
response.  As note in the attached response and in the response from November 29, 2023, the City is still 
searching for, collecting, ad examining separate and distinct records, and will produce the next set of 
responsive record on or before December 13, 2023.”  I have only been able to go through about half of the 
overdue December 29, 2023 records after spending multiple hours on it. Further, there are responsive records 
that I have not even received yet, and I will not receive until, at least, 49 days after my request.  As such, if 
possible, I would like to reserve my right to respond/make arguments/objections to the documents I did not 
receive in a timely manner.  I am submitting the November 30, 2023 e‐mail from Blake Markum. 
 
THE CITY IS NOT FOLLOWING THE GUIDELINES FOR THE OVERALL PROCESS 
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This issue was discussed earlier.  Please also see Mr Rich Fosters e‐mail on or about August 16, 2023 which I 
have incorporated in this e‐mail. 
 
 
 



























































 
 
From: snydercynthia95@yahoo.com <snydercynthia95@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 7:27 AM 
To: City Clerk Group <cityclerkgroup@cityofgoleta.org> 
Subject: Needed affordable Housing 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Please forgive this informal request as I am without my computer and only have my phone,  
I also contracted Covid so I hope it make’s sense. 
My name is Cynthia Snyder and I have been in Santa Barbara for almost 50 years. I was recently asked to 
move after 8 years of living happily in a rented house. The owners Sister became ill and she returned to 
take care of her. 
Since that time I have been appalled at the lack of housing available for people who need to rent. 
Exorbetant rents. Landlords selling rental properties for way above market value driving rents through 
the roof. They would not 
Have the impact they are having if we had more affordable housing on the market. Please hear my plea. 
When you are faced with having to live in your car as a senior citizen it is a daunting thought. Yet, here I 
am facing just that. I don’t know how to be homeless. Where do I go? Where is safe? I have a little cat 
will she be safe when I leave her to go to work? 
We need more housing, it’s wrong when people have to commute over an hour to work 
Just because of lack of housing. Please try to put yourself in my place, we must share this beautiful 
place, open your hearts and hear our prayer for more affordable housing. Thank you if you wish to 
contact me please do at 
Snydercynthia95@yahoo.com 
 

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone 
 

mailto:Snydercynthia95@yahoo.com
https://mail.onelink.me/107872968?pid=nativeplacement&c=Global_Acquisition_YMktg_315_Internal_EmailSignature&af_sub1=Acquisition&af_sub2=Global_YMktg&af_sub3=&af_sub4=100000604&af_sub5=EmailSignature__Static_


  

Beth A. Collins 
Attorney at Law 
805.882.1419 direct 
bcollins@bhfs.com 

www.bhfs.com

Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
805.963.7000 main 
1021 Anacapa Street, 2nd Floor 
Santa Barbara, California  93101 

December 5, 2023 

VIA E‐MAIL CCOLYER@CITYOFGOLETA.ORG  

 

City Council 
City of Goleta 
130 Cremona Drive 
Goleta, CA 93117 

RE:  Agenda Items C.1 – D.3 Proposed Draft 2023‐2031 Housing Element Adoption 

Dear Mayor Perotte and Councilmembers: 

As you know, we represent the owners of Shelby Residential Project (Project) at 7400 Cathedral Oaks 
Road (APN 077‐530‐019) (Property).  We understand that the City’s 2023‐2031 Housing Element 
(Housing Element) process has been arduous for decisionmakers, staff, and the community; and we 
understand the temptation, in light of the State’s October 2023 letter, to conclude that the process is 
nearly complete, and no further changes to the City’s Housing Element should be considered.  In fact, 
the City is not out of the woods yet.  There are steps this Council can take to improve the draft 
Housing Element, and increase the likelihood that more quality affordable housing will be 
constructed in Goleta. 

Most critically, the City’s current Housing Element draft overly relies excessively on projected 
development of “underutilized sites” where the City has no evidence of actual owner interest in 
redeveloping these sites or examples of significant redevelopment in the City, or even in the area. 

 

The City’s total regional housing needs assessment (RHNA) allocation is 1,837 units, and the City 
estimates 1,322 units will be produced in this next cycle from “underutilized sites.”  This is a vast 
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overestimate, and makes the City’s Housing Element vulnerable to legal challenge.1   

On September 12, 2023, the Los Angeles Superior Court found that the City of Beverly Hill’s existing 
site inventory, which relied heavily on a redevelopment of underutilized, nonvacant sites through a 
mixed use overlay, did not substantially comply with California Housing Element Law.2  The Court 
closely scrutinized the City of Beverly Hill’s nonvacant site inventory and determined that the City did 
not explain the methodology for the redevelopment potential for these sites or how existing uses 
serve as an impediment to residential development.  The City’s draft Housing Element contains a 
similarly flawed analysis with respect to the development potential of underutilized sites.  

All housing projects start with one thing – a willing owner.  No housing project happens without 
someone dogged and committed enough to continue to push through what can be an incredibly 
costly, time consuming, and risky permitting and construction process.  Without a willing 
owner/developer no housing can be developed on a parcel.  Recognizing this, the Housing Element 
identifies “Developer/Owner Interest” as Factor #1 to assess whether a site will likely be redeveloped 
with housing.3  Yet the City’s Housing Element identifies many, many properties in its “underutilized 
site” inventory in Table 10A‐31 without any evidence of an interested owner.  In fact, only 31 of the 
1,322 units (only 2 percent!) of the properties listed in Table 10‐31A have expressed ownership 
interest.4  Underutilized sites face even larger barriers to development than a vacant site because the 
housing project not only needs to make financial sense on its own, it needs to make up for any income 
that will be lost from the redevelopment of the existing operations on the site.  Table 10‐31A 
presumes redevelopment of numerous existing sites—like Fairview and University Plazas, commercial 
business between 5677‐5955 Calle Real (including 27 units on the Bowlero Santa Barbara parcel), 
Sumida Nursery and the Elks Lodge—for affordable housing within the next 8 years without any 
evidence of owner interest.  The Housing Element also fails to explain how these projects will be 
legally possible given existing leases and other real estate arrangements or how the projects will make 
economic sense in light of the significant existing operations.   

Additionally, the City tries to point to examples of such redevelopment to demonstrate that it is 
possible, but only identifies 108 units in the City of Santa Barbara and the County.5  The Housing 
Element further fails to analyze whether these types of redevelopment projects are feasible within the 

 
1 See Brownstein, Letter to California Department of Housing and Community Development re City of Goleta Housing 
Element 2023 (Sep. 7, 2023) https://www.cityofgoleta.org/home/showpublisheddocument/29305/638297686964430000; 
see also Exhibit 1 (court decision finding the City of Beverly Hills’ Housing Element noncompliant with California Housing 
Element Law for similar reasons outlined in the Brownstein Letter).  
2 A recent trial court decision found that the City of Beverly Hills’ Housing Element failed to comply with California Housing 
Element Law on the basis that Beverly Hills failed to provide a realistic estimate of development capacity under its existing 
zoning and failed to show that sites with existing uses would likely redevelop with housing. (See Exhibit 1.) Brownstein and 
other commenters have raised similar issues throughout the City’s Housing Element adoption process. 
3 Housing Element, p. 10A‐91.  
4 See Table 10A‐31, see properties U20, 6950 Hollister A #100 (10 units), U24, 7300 Hollister Ave. (10 units), U97, 5836 
Hollister Ave. (10 units), and U163, 550 Cambridge Dr. (1 unit).  
5 Housing Element, pp. 10A‐89 ‐ 10A‐90. 
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City.6  The City identifies no examples of sites that have been actually redeveloped in the City of 
Goleta.7  The Housing Element also simply cannot identify any redevelopment in the region in the 
quantities (1,322 units) hoped for in Table 10‐31A – it does not exist.  The Housing Element points to 
the Goleta Water District’s prohibition on new water meters as rationale for there being no similar 
redevelopment projects in Goleta,8 but fails to mention that redevelopment of underutilized sites was 
actually possible under Goleta Water District’s SAFE ordinance because in some cases existing water 
usage could be used as a credit to support new affordable housing development.  Put simply, the 
City’s Housing Element is fundamentally flawed and the City needs to rezone more sites – especially, 
vacant sites – to ensure enough housing will be constructed in this next housing cycle. 

The Shelby Property is a viable vacant site that should be considered.  A few key complaints have 
arisen from neighbors, commentors, and decisionmakers throughout the Housing Element process:  
(1) the City’s housing inventory is too reliant on redevelopment of “underutilized sites” which have 
existing uses that are unlikely to be replaced with housing in the next 8 years, (2) the City has not fairly 
distributed proposed new housing sites across the City, and (3) the City has slated too much density 
on some sites while ignoring other viable vacant sites.  Including the vacant 14‐acre Shelby Property 
in the Housing Element helps address all these concerns because it will give the City an important 
buffer of additional units distributed more evenly around the City on a vacant site (see also Exhibit 2 
[prior letters submitted to the City and HCD re Shelby]).   

Some confusion has arisen about whether Measure G blocks the City’s ability to include Shelby in 
the Housing Element.9  To address this confusion, we submitted the attached proposal to the City 
(Exhibit 3), laying out a path that would allow the City to rely on the Shelby Property in its Housing 
Element.  As is detailed in the proposal, the Shelby Project includes a Vesting Tentative Tract Map 
which was deemed complete before Measure G passed.  Under the Subdivision Map Act, and the 
City’s Code, Shelby may amend the existing Vesting Tentative Tract Map to facilitate more housing 
development on the Property in furtherance of critical City and State policies.  This vested application 
makes the Property uniquely situated to allow residential development on the Property to move 
forward without implicating Measure G or creating the risk that other agricultural lands within the City 
would be converted to residential uses.   

 
6 Housing Element, p. 10A‐90 (Housing Element only provides a conclusory statements that certain uses are being 
redeveloped in the “region” and that the City “anticipates similar redevelopment trends” while acknowledging that they 
did not review any data on the characteristics of the example sites).  
7 Housing Element, Tab. 10A‐27. 
8 Housing Element, pp. 10A‐89 ‐ 10A‐90. 
9 For additional background, the local owners, Glynne and Gillian Couvillion and their family, purchased this Property in the 
1970s when it was within Santa Barbara County and was designated in the General Plan for residential development for 
decades.  In an effort to stop housing development in the region, however, the County downzoned the site to agriculture 
in the 1980s against the family’s wishes.  For over 25 years, the Couvillion family has proposed residential development on 
the Property in an effort to return the Property’s original residential zoning since the Property is not well suited for 
agriculture use.  Measure G is a voter initiative—enacted in 2012—that requires a vote of the people to modify the existing 
agricultural land use designation. 
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In short, the Shelby Property presents a special opportunity for the City to facilitate the development 
of residential units without conflicting with Measure G.  As you will see in the attached, the Shelby 
Property could be developed with approximately 56 units (which is the Project that has been 
proposed for decades),10 101 units (20 percent deed‐restricted affordable), or 129 units (30 percent 
deed‐restricted affordable).  Acknowledging the severity of the housing crisis and the intensity of the 
City’s RHNA obligation, the Couvillion family approached the City Council with the attached proposal 
to allow the Property to move forward with a more dense, affordable residential project.  A denser, 
affordable housing project along a major arterial (Cathedral Oaks), in the City’s urban area, on 
Measure G exempt lands, within walking distances of multiple schools further satisfies the City’s 
stated rezoning goals.11    In light of this, we ask that the Shelby Property be included in the City’s 
rezone list to accommodate the City’s regional housing needs identified in the City’s Housing Element.  

The proposed options give the City Council the opportunity to partner with a local family to develop a 
more dense, residential project with at least 20 percent of the units available to lower income 
households.12  The Couvillion family is also open to receiving input from Council on key aspects of the 
revised project, like the type of units (rental or for‐sale), the size and type of affordable units, the 
percentage of affordable units by income category, and other project features and community 
amenities.  

Proactively adding the revised affordable project to the City’s site inventory and rezones now reduces 
risk for the City and provides the City with additional flexibility to tailor development to the 
community’s needs.  Further, adding the Shelby Property will demonstrate the Council’s commitment 
to including sufficient sites in its site inventory with a realistic capacity for redevelopment during the 
Housing Element’s planning period.   

In summary, we respectfully urge the City Council to include the Shelby Property in the rezone list 
and resume discussions with the Couvillion family over a more dense, affordable housing project. 

 
10 The Couvillion family has a pending application for the 56‐unit residential Project on the Property, which the City 
deemed complete in March 2011.  The Project has been ready to move forward since approximately 2015 and has been 
analyzed by the City of Goleta (City) through two environmental impact reports (EIRs) which are still available on the City’s 
website.  City of Goleta, Shelby General Plan Amendment and Shelby Residential Project 
https://www.cityofgoleta.org/your‐city/planning‐and‐environmental‐review/ceqa‐review/shelby‐general‐plan‐
amendment‐and‐shelby‐residential‐project (accessed on Oct. 27, 2023). 
11 As previously explained in our letters attached as Exhibit 2, the Shelby Property achieves the City’s stated rezoning goals 
of creating housing along a major arterial (Cathedral Oaks), in the City’s urbanized area, on Measure G exempt lands that 
are not in agricultural use.  
12 The 101‐unit project would provide at least 21 lower income units and 129‐unit project would provide at least 39 lower 
income units. 
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Sincerely,  

Beth A. Collins 
 
Attachments:  

Exhibit 1 – Californians for Homeownership, Inc. v. City of Beverly Hills, Ruling on Verified First 
Amended Petition for Writ of Mandate  
Exhibit 2 – Shelby Letters to City of Goleta 
Exhibit 3 – Proposed Settlement Agreement  
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Exhibit 1 
Californians for Homeownership, Inc. v. City of Beverly Hills 

  



























Exhibit 2 
Shelby Letters to City of Goleta 

  



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

July 20, 2023 

VIA EMAIL TO: CITYCLERKGROUP@CITYOFGOLETA.ORG 

City Council and Planning Commission  
City of Goleta 
130 Cremona Drive 
Goleta, CA 93117 

RE:  Housing Element 2023‐2031 Sites Inventory Rezoning Study Session 

Dear Mayor, City Councilmembers, and Planning Commissioners:  

Our firm represents numerous clients throughout the City of Goleta (“City”) on commercial, mixed use 
and multi‐family development projects. I have been closely monitoring the City’s process to develop 
and obtain certification of its 2023‐2031 Housing Element (“Housing Element”).  As your Council and 
Commission are aware, the City’s Housing Element update is a crucial opportunity to implement 
policies and programs that affirmatively further fair housing and support families and businesses 
within the City in a manner the complies with state law.  On behalf of Glynne and Gillian Couvillion 
and their family, this letter supports the City’s identification of potential sites to rezone to 
accommodate additional housing with the City and encourages the City to take meaningful steps 
toward rezoning additional land suitable for affordable housing development.  This additional housing 
will help the City address key challenges, including high housing costs, inadequate affordable rental 
housing, and homelessness.  

I. IDENTIFYING SUFFICIENT REZONE SITES THROUGH A ROBUST PUBLIC PROCESS IS NECESSARY
TO ENSURE THAT THE CITY CAN ACHIEVE ITS REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION

The City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation (“RHNA”) identifies the projected housing needs within 
the City and assigns the City a need to plan for a total of 1,837 units during the Housing Element’s 
eight year planning period.  This allocation is divided based on income category with the City needing 
to plan for 682 very low, 324 low, 370 moderate, and 461 above moderate income housing units.1  
The City must plan for these units in its Housing Element and enact ordinances, policies and standards 
to promote the construction of affordable housing.  

1 See Draft Housing Element, Table 10‐1.  
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In response to findings from California’s Department of Housing and Community Development 
(“HCD”) on the draft Housing Element,2 staff revised the site inventory and now identifies a shortfall 
of 554 lower income units that can be accommodated on existing sites.3  This increased shortfall is a 
monumental change from the City’s most recent draft Housing Element which found a surplus 
capacity of 558 lower income units on vacant and underutilized sites under existing zoning.  The 
Staff Report further explains that HCD recommends a reasonable buffer of 15 percent, bringing the 
currently estimated total shortfall to 637 lower income units.4  Thus, since the last draft Housing 
Element, the City has revised its capacity to provide lower income housing units by 1,112 lower 
income units (or 1,195 units with the buffer). 

The basis for this dramatic change must be clearly explained.  The Staff Report, however, only 
provides a general overview of the revisions to the underutilized site inventory to shift the income 
categories of units and to remove some underutilized sites due to site constraints.5  Although the 
Attachment 2 to the Staff Report contains a Rezone Candidate Sites Map identifying the existing 
inventory, it is difficult for the public to understand the vacant and underutilized sites that were 
removed from the prior draft Housing Element or the basis for the removal of some sites but not 
others.  Further, the Staff Report does not explain why a 15 percent buffer is adequate given the 
uncertainties associated with the development of affordable housing and that the State has often 
required local agencies rezone with a more conservative buffer. 

Public participation in preparation of the Housing Element is a cornerstone of Housing Element Law.6  
One joint session of the City Council and Planning Commission with an abbreviated staff report and 
one week’s notice is not enough to ensure adequate public review of the site inventory and potential 
rezones.  The public must have the opportunity to review and understand the identified sites, the 
basis for the site inventory and the calculated shortfall.  This public review is critical to ensure that the 
existing site inventory appropriately identifies the shortfall of lower income units.  For example, if 
public review of the existing site inventory identifies further sites that do not have the realistic 
possibility for housing development during the planning period or the buffer is not supported, the City 
may be required to rezone additional sites to have HCD certify its Housing Element.  

 
2 HCD found that the Housing Element, among other things, does not (1) identify sufficient sites that have the realistic 
potential for redevelopment with housing under existing zoning; (2) adequately analyze the development potential of 
nonvacant sites with lower income housing; (3) evaluate the extent the City’s land use controls constrain housing; and 
(4) assess the City’s permit processing and procedures to improve the certainty, timing and feasibility of residential 
projects. Based on the above, the HCD concluded that the City has not established the “adequacy” of existing sites and 
zoning to accommodate housing and “the City may need to add or revise programs to address a shortfall of site or zoning 
available to encourage a variety of housing types.” (See Staff Report, Attachment 1.)  
3 Staff Report, p. 4; see HCD Letter, p. 2; Gov. Code, § 65583.2(g)(2). 
4 Staff Report, p. 4. 
5 Staff Report, p. 4. 
6 Gov. Code, §§ 65583(c)(9), 65585(b)(1). 
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Absent more information on the reasoning that supports the changes made to the existing site 
inventory, the City Council and Planning Commission cannot make informed decisions about the 
extent of the potential rezone sites needed to meet the City’s RHNA demand.  Until this information 
is presented, the City Council and Planning Commission should take a conservative approach and 
identify more than sufficient potential rezone sites to accommodate its lower income housing needs 
with a robust buffer.  Otherwise, the City risks not receiving certification of its Housing Element and, 
more importantly, will be less likely to provide enough affordable housing for working families.  

II. THE STAFF PROPOSAL IS A STEP FORWARD, BUT MORE IS NEEDED TO ENSURE THE CITY HAS 
A REALISTIC POSSIBILITY OF ACHIEVING ITS RHNA.  

The Staff Report identifies ten candidate sites for rezones in Table 1 and an additional seven 
alternative sites for rezones in Table 2.7  As noted in the Staff Report, the Table 1 sites only provide a 
maximum potential of 583 lower income units, which is insufficient to meet the City’s lower income 
units shortfall with a fairly low buffer of 15 percent.  Even with the inclusion of all the alternative sites, 
the City only would have the potential to develop 911 lower income affordable housing units based on 
the City’s current zoning proposal.8  Providing the capacity to develop 911 lower income units may 
seem sufficient to meet the City’s RHNA; however, in light of the significant uncertainty associated 
with the City’s existing site inventory along with the challenges facing affordable housing 
development, including permitting requirements, existing uses, local opposition, increased 
construction costs, and financing challenges, development of these units is uncertain at best. 

First, the tables propose to rezone eight underutilized sites for residential uses for a total of 643 units 
and an unclear number of lower income units.9  As noted above, HCD remains skeptical of the 
redevelopment of underutilized sites during the planning period given the high costs to convert 
existing commercial square footage into housing.  This is evidenced by the fact that only one 
significant redevelopment of existing commercial square footage into housing has recently been 
permitted or constructed in the City.10  One of the underutilized sites includes a potential 
redevelopment project by Yardi for primarily employee housing, but this one project—which has not 
been applied for, let alone approved—does not provide sufficient evidence that these underutilized 
sites will realistically be developed with lower income housing in the next eight years. 

 
7 Staff Report, pp. 5‐6. 
8 This 911 lower income unit estimate is based on the sum of the 583 lower income units associated with Table 1 and the 
328 lower income units associated with Table 2. (Staff Report, pp. 5‐6.)  
9 Staff Report, pp. 5‐6. 
10 See Old Town Village (Winslowe) Project in Table 10A‐29 of the Draft Housing Element. The Winslowe Project, however, 
was highly controversial and approved at lower densities (17.8 units/acre) than proposed under the rezones. 
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Second, the tables propose to rezone 15 of the 17 sites for RH Residential – High Density (RH) for 
projects developing at 15 to 30 units per acre.11  The prior draft Housing Element, however, indicates 
that the City did not develop any RH zoned properties during the prior 2015‐2023 Housing Element 
planning period.12  Also, only two of the recent projects (Heritage Ridge and Cortona Apartments) 
were developed at more than 20 units per acre, well below the maximum density allowed under RH 
zoning.13  The City thus does not have a proven track record of approving high density projects under 
the City’s RH zoning.  As a result, the Planning Commission and City Council should support 
considering additional candidate sites for potential rezones, at a variety of residential densities, to 
ensure there are a realistic number of sites for the City to achieve its RHNA for lower income units. 

Thus, we urge the City Council and Planning Commission to take a conservative approach toward 
moving forward with the rezones and select all the proposed sites.  Selecting all the proposed sites 
for potential rezones will allow staff and the public to review the adequacy of these sites to support 
affordable housing, to identify potential constraints or opportunities to promote affordable housing 
development on these sites, and to understand how staff arrived at the proposed unit counts, 
including those identified for the lower income category.  More information is needed to understand 
whether these rezone sites at the densities proposed in the Staff Report have a realistic possibility for 
affordable housing development within the planning period.  This information can be developed and 
publicly presented by moving forward with all the potential rezone sites and will help the City show 
whether it can meet its lower income RHNA obligations consistent with Housing Element Law. 

Moreover, the Staff Report expressly notes that “[e]xceeding the shortfall has value if HCD does not 
support particular sites as counting toward the lower income need.”14  As such, including all the sites 
in Tables 1 and 2 for potential rezones—as well as identifying additional sites—will further support 
certification of the Housing Element and reduce the housing challenges facing the City’s residents.  

III. THE SHELBY RESIDENTIAL PROJECT SITE IS ANOTHER VACANT SITE—EXEMPT FROM 
MEASURE G—THAT COULD ASSIST THE CITY WITH MEETING ITS LOWER INCOME HOUSING 
NEEDS.  

The Shelby Residential Project Site (“Shelby Site”) is a vacant site that is noticeably absent from the 
Staff Report. The Staff Report identifies three key criteria for its process to select candidate sites: 
(1) property owner interest; (2) located along or near major arterials in the City’s urban area; and 
(3) are not Measure G‐protected agricultural sites.15  The Shelby Site meets all three of these criteria.  

 
11 See Goleta Municipal Code, § 17.07.020.  
12 See City, Draft Housing Element, Tables 10A‐27 & 10A‐29. 
13 See City, Draft Housing Element, Table 10A‐29. 
14 Staff Report, p. 6.  
15 Staff Report, p. 5. 
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First, the Shelby Site, located at 7400 Cathedral Oaks Road, is a vacant 14.38 acres (gross) property 
that has had a pending application for the Shelby Residential Project with the City for the 
development of a market rate 56 single‐family residential subdivision project since 2005.  (See Exhibit 
– Property Aerial.)  The Shelby Residential Project has already undergone significant planning and 
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act.  The pending project 
applications have been before the City for over 18 years and demonstrate a firm commitment to 
residential development and should streamline the City’s process to review and approve a housing 
project on the Shelby Site.  The Couvillion family, the long‐time owner, recognizes the significant 
unmet affordable housing needs within the City and has interest in revising the project to provide 
more dense, multi‐family housing and a significant number of lower income units.  The Couvillion 
family welcomes the opportunity to coordinate with the City to rezone the Shelby Site for higher 
density affordable housing. 

Second, the Shelby Site is located along Cathedral Oaks Road, a two and four lane arterial roadway in 
the City’s urban area connecting it to key job centers along Calle Real and Hollister Avenue. It also has 
existing water and wastewater main facilities.  Two bus stops with two different service lines are 
within a half mile of the Shelby Site as well.  The majority of the site has limited ecological value and is 
within walking distance of Dos Pueblos High School and two elementary schools—making it an ideal 
housing site for teachers and families.  

Third, the Shelby Residential Project is exempt from Measure G.  The Shelby Residential Project has a 
vested tentative map that exempts the project from Measure G; and should the project proceed 
under the Builder’s Remedy it would not need a General Plan Amendment or a rezone, and thus 
Measure G would not be triggered.16  Although the Shelby Site is currently zoned for agriculture and 
has an agriculture general plan land use designation, the site is not in agriculture use, and has not 
been for decades. In fact, when Dr. Couvillion acquired the property, it was zoned for residential 
development.17  Including the Shelby Site in the potential rezone list would simply return the property 
to its original residential zoning.  Accordingly, the Shelby Site is not an agricultural site subject to 
Measure G and the City should elect to rezone the site to meet its RHNA obligations. 

 
16 The Shelby Residential Project’s application for a vesting tentative map was deemed complete in 2011, vesting it with 
then applicable general plan, zoning and development standards. Measure G did not pass until 2012; therefore the Shelby 
Residential Project is exempt from Measure G.  
17 The parcel was originally zoned residential from the 1950s through 1982. The County rezoned the property to agriculture 
in 1982 in response to no‐growth movements in 1982. However, the original 30 acre parcel was subdivided in connection 
with the extension of Cathedral Oaks Road after which the County rezoned the south parcel for residential and it was 
developed with single family homes. The subdivision of the parcel, development of Cathedral Oaks, the golf course, and 
adjacent residential developments, however, has extremely limited the Shelby Site’s viability for agriculture use and the 
site has not been in use as productive agriculture for decades.  
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In summary, we urge the City Council and Planning Commission to recommend the Shelby Site for 
inclusion in the list of potential rezone sites since it meets each of the City’s three criteria for potential 
rezone sites, in addition to other positive aspects.  The site could be rezoned with RM Residential – 
Medium Density and RS Single Family Residential to allow for a more dense, affordable housing 
project that still aligns with the overall character of the surrounding neighborhood.  The City Council 
and Planning Commission can and should consider all potential options to prepare a revised Housing 
Element that complies with state law and promotes realistic affordable residential development to 
house essential workers and low income residents.  We are confident that if included in the City’s 
rezone proposal, the Shelby Site can be developed with significant affordable housing for lower 
income local families within the planning period. 

We do not wish to delay the City moving forward with much needed efforts to promote affordable 
housing development through certification of its Housing Element and the related rezones.  Thus, we 
respectfully request that the City Council and Planning Commission move forward with all the 
potential rezone sites—and add the Shelby Site—through a transparent public process that allows 
for thorough review of the City’s existing site inventory and potential rezone sites.  We firmly 
believe that this public process is necessary to comply with state Housing Element Law and promote 
sustainable, affordable housing development within the City.  

Thank you for your careful consideration of these comments as you deliberate on the potential rezone 
sites and future actions to support the development of affordable housing in the City of Goleta.  

Sincerely, 

Beth A. Collins 
 
Cc:  Anne Wells, Advance Planning Manager 

Andy Newkirk, Senior Planner 

 25849130.7 
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Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
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1021 Anacapa Street, 2nd Floor 
Santa Barbara, California  93101 

July 31, 2023 

VIA EMAIL TO: CITYCLERKGROUP@CITYOFGOLETA.ORG 

City Council and Planning Commission  
City of Goleta 
130 Cremona Drive 
Goleta, CA 93117 

RE:  Third Meeting on Housing Element 2023‐2031 Sites Inventory Rezoning Study Session, 
Second Meeting on July 31, 2023 

Dear Mayor, City Councilmembers, and Planning Commissioners:  

This letter follows my letter from Thursday, July 20, 2023 regarding the sites inventory for rezoning 
necessary for the City to obtain certification of its draft 2023‐2031 Housing Element (“Housing 
Element”).  We respectfully request that the City Council and Planning Commission carefully consider 
the following comments during their deliberations on the rezones for the Housing Element’s site 
inventory.  

I. THE BASIS FOR STAFF’S CALCULATION OF THE CITY’S UNIT SHORTFALL HAS STILL NOT BEEN 
PROVIDED TO THE PUBLIC OR DECISIONMAKERS 

As staff detailed in the first meeting on July 20, 2023, “after revisions to address HCD 3/20/23 
comments” the City now reportedly has a shortfall of sites for low and very low income categories.  
But the basis for these numbers has never been shared – with the public or decisionmakers.  Despite 
weeks of meetings, no one has seen the analysis supporting the almost 1,200 unit swing in the City’s 
shortfall of units in the site inventory.  As explained in our July 20, 2023 letter, the City’s most recent 
draft Housing Element reported a surplus capacity of 558 lower income units on vacant and 
underutilized sites under existing zoning (see Housing Element, Table 10‐1 below), but now staff 
estimate a 583 shortfall, plus staff seek a 15 percent buffer (for a total of 637 lower income units).1  

 
1 Housing Element 2023‐2031 Site Inventory Rezone Study Session, p. 4 (July 20, 2023).  
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This swing of approximately 1,200 lower income units (from +558 to ‐637 lower income units) is the 
starting point for the City Council and Planning Commission’s decision about whether the City is 
identifying sufficient sites to rezone in its Housing Element, yet the reasoning behind that baseline has 
not been vetted.  The assumptions about the development potential of these sites – both the existing 
sites plus the potential rezone sites – on the site inventory lies at the foundation of the City’s Housing 
Element.  Public participation in understanding the basis for these numbers is particularly valuable 
because the public has information that the City Council and Planning Commission and staff do not 
have about the viability of potential development over the next cycle.  Decisionmakers should have 
the information now as you all consider potential rezones to address the City’s shortfall.  Without that 
information, vetted by the public, City Council and Planning Commission cannot know if the shortfall 
you are currently seeking to address is actually much higher, and the City needs to identify even more 
sites to rezone.   

Without the information, the City Council and Planning Commission should apply a significantly larger 
buffer to ensure the City will rezone sufficient sites to meet its legal requirements, retain local control, 
and most importantly, provide enough affordable housing for working families in Goleta.  

II. THE COMMENTS AT THE WORKSHOPS MAKE CLEAR THAT MORE SITES ARE NEEDED 

The hearings have demonstrated that there are many, many forces at work to stop and reduce 
development at all of these sites.  We heard concerns about higher density development and height 
on the proposed sites being incompatible with surrounding development, concerns about impacts to 
views archaeology, biology, environmental setbacks, traffic, noise, and interest in protecting certain 
neighborhoods and distributing development across the City (while also focusing it near schools and 
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other development).2  But very few comments pushed for more density, more height, more 
development at any of these sites.  Almost none.  Plus, as many commenters and decision‐makers 
acknowledged it is incredibly unlikely that the City will meet the 100 percent affordable projections for 
a number of the sites.   

That means that the City needs to rezone and upzone more sites.  Waiting to do it only once the City 
starts falling behind as we move through the eight‐year housing element cycle will put the City far 
behind.  As we know, development projects take years to entitle.  It is better to rezone additional sites 
now and let as many projects as possible start moving through the design and preapplication process, 
and allow the projects to be modified as needed in response to site specific constraints.  Additional 
sites are necessary especially in light of factors outside the City’s control that can slow or halt 
development projects, such as economic downturns, inflation and interest rate increases, natural 
disasters and other global disturbances, and a water moratoria.  To ensure housing is developed as 
needed in this cycle, this City needs to get as many viable sites moving forward through the 
development process as possible, as soon as possible.  The City Council and Planning Commission 
should not support a hollow exercise to rezone the minimum number of sites to receive certification 
of its Housing Element when it is clear that approach would not truly achieve the community’s 
workforce housing needs.  

III. THE SHELBY SITE PROVIDES A WONDERFUL POTENTIAL REZONE SITE FOR AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING 

As noted in my July 20, 2023 letter, the Shelby Site has a (a) willing owner (with a demonstrated 
dogged commitment to building residential units on this site), (b) surrounded by other urban uses, 
and (c) a pending residential project that is exempt from Measure G.  It is located walking distance to 
schools and close to transit.  The Shelby Site also is a vacant site, which is highly valued by HCD when 
evaluating the City’s Housing Element because it is more likely to be developed with housing during 
next eight‐year planning period.   

The 14‐acre Shelby Site is surrounded by urban uses and cannot be used for agriculture.  The Shelby 
Site would also not have some of the impacts to surrounding neighbors that some of the other sites in 
the inventory may have because the property is naturally buffered from surrounding neighbors (single 
family homes south of Cathedral Oaks and condominiums to the west across Northgate Drive).  The 
Shelby Site could also provide an affordable project designed  minimizes potential impacts to 
surrounding neighbors with setbacks and variation in building heights.  The Shelby Site also helps 
distribute new housing development more around the City.  As such, the Shelby Site is an ideal 

 
2 These comments similarly apply to the already identified sites in the site inventory that remain unvetted.  
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candidate site for rezoning and demonstrating the City Council’s commitment to support affordable 
housing development within the City. 

In summary, we urge the City Council and Planning Commission to rezone all the sites proposed and 
add the Shelby Site to the potential rezones.  The Shelby Site could be rezoned with RM Residential – 
Medium Density and RS Single Family Residential to allow for a more dense, affordable housing 
project that still aligns with the overall character of the surrounding neighborhood.   

Thank you for your careful consideration of these comments.  

Sincerely, 

Beth A. Collins 
 
Cc:  Anne Wells, Advance Planning Manager 

Andy Newkirk, Senior Planner 

 25878092.1 
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July 31, 2023 

PRIVILEGED – SETTLEMENT OFFER 
EVID. CODE, § 1152 ET SEQ. 

VIA EMAIL TO: Megan.Garibaldi@bbklaw.com 

City Council  
City of Goleta 
130 Cremona Drive 
Goleta, CA 93117 

RE:  Shelby Residential Project – Settlement Offer for a Revised Affordable Housing Project 

Dear Mayor and City Councilmembers:  

As you are aware, the Couvillion family has been seeking approvals from the City of Goleta (“City”) for 
the Shelby Residential Project located at 7400 Cathedral Oaks (the “Shelby Site”) since 2005. The 
pending applications propose a 56‐home market‐rate single‐family residential subdivision project with 
a vesting tentative map which was deemed complete in 2011.1 The original project was designed to 
conform to the single family residences in the existing neighborhood along the southern side of 
Cathedral Oaks.  

Since the original Shelby application in 2011, times have changed. California, including the Central 
Coast, now faces an epic housing crisis that harms working families and the vibrancy and economic 
vitality of the City. Recognizing the need for affordable housing, the Couvillion family wants to work 
with the City on a path forward for a modified Shelby Residential Project (“Affordable Project”) that 
meets the community’s need for affordable housing. The Affordable Project also would help the City 
demonstrate its commitment to affordable housing and show it can achieve its regional housing needs 
with the California Department of Housing and Community Development (“HCD”).  

The Couvillion family has options to proceed with residential development on the Shelby Site, but 
ultimately it would prefer to cooperate with the City on a path forward. A settlement agreement for 
an Affordable Project provides a significantly better option for the City to move forward 
collaboratively with the Couvillion family to develop much‐needed affordable housing within the City. 

 
1 The pending applications include a (1) General Plan Amendment (05‐154‐GPA), (2) a rezone (05‐154‐RZ), (3) a zoning 
ordinance text amendment (05‐154‐OA), (4) a Vesting Tentative Map (05‐154‐VTM), (5) a Development Plan (05‐154‐DP), 
and (6) a Development Agreement (05‐154‐DA). 



City of Goleta 
City Council and Planning Commission 
July 31, 2023 
Page 2 

  
It helps the Couvillion family realize the goal of developing housing on the vacant Shelby Site. It helps 
City Council provide lower income housing to meet its regional needs and the needs of working 
families.  

The Couvillion family hopes to create a legacy Affordable Housing Project that the City and family can 
be proud of rather than face delays or disputes with the City. To that end, we propose the following 
settlement agreement options for the City Council’s consideration:  

(A) rezone the Shelby Site before February 2024 at the same time the City approves Shelby’s 
modified vesting tentative map with two parcels (one parcel approximately 6 acres zoned RP  – 
Planned Residential and one parcel of approximately 8 acres zoned RS – Single Family 
Residential) so that the City can take credit for the units which will be developed on the 
property in its 2023‐2031 Housing Element (“Housing Element”), or  

(B) allow the Couvillion family to proceed with an Affordable Project to meet part of the City’s 
regional housing needs.  

Both options allow the City Council to collaborate with the Couvillion family on a viable affordable 
housing project and avoid unnecessary litigation. 

Option A. Applicant Modifies Its Vesting Tentative Tract Map to Create Two Lots Which Can Be 
Rezoned to Allow for Multi‐Family and Single‐Family Housing to Support the City’s Housing Element 
Sites Inventory. 

The Couvillion Family offers to modify the Shelby Residential Project, reducing its pending vesting 
tentative map to only two parcels: an approximately 8 acre multi‐family zoned parcel (RP – Planned 
Residential) and an approximately 6 acre single‐family zoned parcel (RS – Single Family Residential). 
No actual development would be proposed, or approved, with the rezone and map. However, since 
the rezone/General Plan Amendment could be approved at the same time as the modified vesting 
tentative map, the rezone/General Plan Amendment would not be subject to Measure G.  

Option A would allow the City to include the Shelby Site in its rezone efforts supporting the Housing 
Element. By doing so, the City could rely on the Shelby Site’s development potential to demonstrate 
the City’s ability to meet part of its lower income regional housing needs allocation in its Housing 
Element.  

Once rezoned, the Couvillion family would then proceed with a separate, subsequent application for 
an Affordable Project in accordance with the Shelby Site’s new residential zoning designations. The 
Couvillion family has proposed two different potential versions of such a project, which are discussed 
further below. This separate application would proceed through the City’s standard development 
review process, including environmental review. The City, Couvillion family and community would 
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provide input on the Affordable Project’s design through the City’s tradition development review 
process.  

We believe Option A is a sensible solution for everyone. It provides the City with a more defensible 
Housing Element because it allows the City to rezone a significant vacant property, located along a 
major arterial and with utility services, within the City’s urban area to include in the site inventory. It 
helps ensure the Shelby Site is developed with more residential units, and more deed‐restricted 
affordable units (since the current project only contemplates 56 market rate, single family homes). It 
also ensures the development will be done in compliance with the City’s new zoning code (which has 
more stringent inclusionary housing and other requirements). The Shelby Site also gives the City more 
flexibility for its other rezone sites or provides an addition buffer in case the projects identified in the 
Housing Element do not develop at the density and unit composition proposed.   

Option B. Shelby Residential Project Revises Its Vesting Tentative Map to Accommodate an 
Affordable Housing Project with City Council Support 

Alternatively, under Option B, the Couvillion family would modify its Shelby Residential Project and 
vesting tentative map for either a 101 or 129‐unit multi‐family and single‐family affordable housing 
project on the Shelby Site. Copies of the preliminary designs for these potential Affordable Projects 
are attached hereto as Exhibits A (101‐unit project) and B (129‐unit project).  

Under Option B the City Council would similarly rezone a portion of the Shelby Site to accommodate 
the multi‐family portion of the Affordable Project. Both Affordable Projects can be refined to comply 
with all applicable development standards for the necessary underlying zoning. The Couvillion family is 
willing to work with the City on either proposed Affordable Project to design a project that meets both 
parties’ needs for the Shelby Site.  

Option B, however, would take additional time to process given the need to update environmental 
review for the specific Affordable Project selected. This delay would mean the City may have a difficult 
time claiming credit toward meeting its lower income housing obligations in its Housing Element. 
Although ultimately, after the project is approved, the Affordable Project’s lower income units would 
of course count toward meeting the City’s regional housing need obligations during this housing 
element cycle, Option B will not be as helpful to the City in obtaining certification of its Housing 
Element from HCD. 

Option B however does present another viable option for the development of an Affordable Project 
on the Shelby Site through a collaborative effort with the Couvillion family. 
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Benefits of an Affordable Project over Status Quo 

Under any of these Options, the Shelby Site is a special opportunity for the City. The Shelby Site aligns 
with all the key criteria for a potential rezone: the Couvillion family is a willing property owner with a 
demonstrated commitment to housing development (in fact, the owner has shown a persistent 
commitment to developing the site over decades); the Shelby Site is located near major arterials 
within the City’s urban area, near public transit and three schools; and rezoning of the Shelby Site with 
the pending vested tentative map is vested against Measure G.  

The Shelby Site also is a vacant site, which is highly valued by HCD when evaluating the City’s Housing 
Element because it is more likely to be developed with housing during next eight‐year planning period. 
The 14‐acre Shelby Site is surrounded by urban uses and cannot be used for agriculture. The Shelby 
Site would also not have some of the impacts to surrounding neighbors that some of the other sites in 
the inventory may have because the property is naturally buffered from surrounding neighbors (single 
family homes south of Cathedral Oaks and condos to the west).  The design also minimizes potential 
impacts to surrounding neighbors with setbacks and variation in building heights.  The Shelby Site also 
helps distribute new housing development more around the City.  As such, the Shelby Site is an ideal 
candidate site for rezoning and demonstrating the City Council’s commitment to support affordable 
housing development within the City. 

As mentioned above, the Couvillion family’s existing Shelby Residential Project contains 56 market 
rate, single family residences. The existing Shelby Residential Project has been analyzed through two 
environmental impact reports (EIR), prepared under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
It is the closest to shovel ready and need not be modified to proceed under its vesting tentative map. 
The vesting tentative map allows the Shelby Residential Project to proceed under the City’s Old Zoning 
Code and City development standards that existed as of March 10, 2011. Therefore, it does not need 
to comply with Measure G, nor the City’s recent inclusionary housing requirements. The Couvillion 
family may proceed with this vesting project in the near future for City Council consideration, but 
doing so would forfeit the opportunity to provide more, much needed affordable and market rate 
housing to the community. 

The Couvillion family also can proceed with a Builder’s Remedy project under the Housing 
Accountability Act with minor modifications to the existing Shelby Residential Project due to the City’s 
noncompliance with state Housing Element Law.2 (Gov. Code, § 65589.5(d).) The City Council would be 

 
2 Government Code section 65589.5(d) constrains the City’s ability to deny or render infeasible qualifying affordable 
housing development projects unless the City can make one of four other findings based on a preponderance of the 
evidence. However, the City Council cannot make any of these findings for an Affordable Project on the Shelby Site. 
Subdivision (d)(1) only applies if the City has a certified housing element and has met its regional housing needs 
obligations; neither of which the City has satisfied. Subdivision (d)(2) does not apply because the City cannot make a 
finding that an Affordable Project will have a “specific, adverse impact upon the public health or safety”, as an Affordable 
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prohibited from denying the Shelby Residential Project based on any inconsistency with the City’s 
zoning code and general plan land use designations, including Measure G. In fact, Measure G would 
not be triggered at all because the Shelby Site would not need a rezone or a General Plan Amendment 
to build an Affordable Project.  The scenario would result in very few affordable units, and would 
subject the City to significant legal risks should the City seek to block or deny the project.  

Similarly, the Couvillion family retains the right to submit for either the 101‐unit or 129‐unit 
Affordable Projects described above under the Builder’s Remedy. In this scenario, the City Council 
would similarly not be able to deny either Affordable Project based on inconsistencies with the City’s 
zoning and general plan land use designations, including Measure G. The City Council would have 
limited discretion over either proposed Affordable Project and would face litigation if it chose to deny 
or unreasonably condition either project.  

Rather than proceed with the one of the above methods to develop a residential project, the 
Couvillion family prefers to collaborate with the City on a path forward through a settlement 
agreement that provides much‐needed affordable housing on the vacant Shelby Site. 

Additional Settlement Agreement Benefits  
Under either Option A or B, the Couvillion family remains open to City Council input on a proposed 
Affordable Project. For example, the Couvillion family remains open to allowing City Council input on 
the following potential Affordable Project features: 

 Number of for‐sale and for‐rent affordable units; 
 Size and type of affordable units; 
 Percentage of affordable units by income category;  
 Other potential project features and amenities; and 

 
Project will not result in any “significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified 
written public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date the application was deemed 
complete.” Inconsistency with the City’s zoning ordinance and general plan land use designations is not sufficient. (Gov. 
Code, § 65589.5(d)(2)(A).) Subdivision (d)(3) does not apply because an Affordable Project would not result in any violation 
of “specific state or federal law.” Subdivision (d)(4) also does not apply because the Shelby Site is not surrounded on two 
sides by land being used for agriculture or resource preservation but rather it is surrounded by a recreational golf course 
and/or will be surround by land zoned for housing should Santa Barbara County move forward with rezoning Glenn Annie 
Golf Course for its housing element. The Shelby Site also has adequate water or wastewater facilities to support an 
Affordable Project given it is within the Goleta Water District and Goleta Sanitary District service areas, and they both have 
facilities that can readily serve the site. (Gov. Code, § 65589.5(d)(4).) Further, to the extent the City believes this language 
refers to water supply instead of facilities, Goleta Water District plans to lift its new connection moratorium before the 
Affordable Project would be approved and, even if the District does not lift the moratorium, an Affordable Project has 
other water supply options. Therefore, the City Council would be required to approve an Affordable Project on the Shelby 
Site under the Builder’s Remedy. 
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 Processing under the City’s New Zoning Ordinance rather than the City’s Old Zoning Ordinance. 

The Couvillion family remains willing to negotiate the above features, among others, to come to a 
financially and politically viable project. We offer these potential terms in an effort to avoid litigation, 
since the Couvillion family wants to prioritize permitting and building affordable housing. 

Proposed Settlement Agreement Terms 

The following provides a preliminary list of key terms for the City Council’s consideration. The terms of 
the settlement agreement may change depending on the City Council’s preferred Option. We 
welcome further coordination with the City Council and City Attorney’s Office to finalize a mutually 
agreeable settlement agreement that benefits the Couvillion family, the City and the community. 

 City confirms Couvillion family will modify its proposed vesting tentative map for the Shelby 
Residential Project consistent with applicable law and preserve its vesting against Measure G. 

 The Couvillion family will submit a Senate Bill 330 Preliminary Application for a Builder’s 
Remedy project to the City for the Shelby Site, which the City accepts while also agreeing that 
the Couvillion family may retain the vesting associated with Vesting Tentative Map.  City then 
holds the Builder’s Remedy application in abeyance, while the Couvillion family and City 
proceed with an Affordable Project under a settlement agreement. 

 The Couvillion family will modify its vesting tentative map for the Shelby Residential Project to 
proceed with Option A or B.  The City initiates any new General Plan Amendment or rezone as 
required to support the RP – Planned Residential zoning of and multifamily development on a 
portion of the Shelby Site. 

 The City and Couvillion family agree to collaborate in good faith on the selected Option, such 
as timely processing of the modified vesting tentative map and Affordable Project features. 

 The City Council retains discretionary review authority over selected Option, and agree that no 
entitlement is issued with this settlement agreement and the City will comply with CEQA at the 
time that any actual rezone, General Plan Amendment, other entitlement or permit is granted 
or permit is approved. 

 The Couvillion family retains the right to proceed with (a) its original Shelby Residential Project 
with its vesting tentative map or (b) its Builder’s Remedy project at any time before the Shelby 
Site receives the necessary approvals contemplated in Options A or B. 

 The City and Couvillion family reserve all legal arguments with respect to the City Council’s 
decisions on the Shelby Residential Project and Builder’s Remedy project following termination 



City of Goleta 
City Council and Planning Commission 
July 31, 2023 
Page 7 

  
of the settlement agreement, except the City forfeits the right to assert that the Couvillion 
family lost its right under the vesting tentative map for the Shelby Residential Project or the 
Builder’s Remedy project by agreeing to the settlement agreement and proceeding as 
described in the settlement agreement. 

 The Couvillion family will support the City’s efforts to obtain certification of its Housing 
Element.  

Thank you for your careful consideration of these comments as you deliberate on the proposed 
settlement agreement. We hope to support the development of affordable housing in cooperation 
with the City of Goleta and firmly believe that a settlement agreement provides the best path forward 
for affordable housing construction on the Shelby Site.  

Sincerely, 

Beth A. Collins 
 
Cc:  Winnie Cai, Assistant City Attorney  

Peter Imhof, Planning & Environmental Review Director  
Anne Wells, Planning Manager  

 

 25884236.6 
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From: Maureen McFadden <mcmpr101@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 11:34 AM 
To: City Clerk Group <cityclerkgroup@cityofgoleta.org> 
Subject: Housing element vote 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Honorable Mayor & City Council, 
I want to emphasize to please keep the 100 ft setback to creeks.  
Allow no amendments or revisions to the 100 feet the City Council established. It’s so little to ask for the 
wildlife that has been there for many more years than we humans.   
 
Please remember the birds, lizards, rabbits and other creatures big & little that depend on the creeks 
and the living canopy covering the creek sides or the mud banks for the swallows.   
Appreciate the opportunity to be heard. As an Audubon member - local & national -  I believe I speak for 
all who love nature in Goleta.    
Thank you.  
 
Maureen ‘Mo’ McFadden 
Rancho Goleta resident & wildlife advocate  
 
945 Ward Drive 
93111 
 
 
Dancing across the ether to you from my iPhone.  
 



-----Original Message----- 
From: Lorena Santamaria <lsantamaria271@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 2:14 PM 
To: City Clerk Group <cityclerkgroup@cityofgoleta.org> 
Subject: 60 Colusa Ave 077-155-004 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
Hi I live at 49 Colusa Ave and I’m in opposition of the proposed new development of the vacant land 
across the street from me. This intersection and my street is congested enough as it is. The distance 
between Glen Annie and Winchester too great. Most everyone uses the Glen Annie off/on ramps 
instead of Winchester.  I live extremely close to the fwy on and off ramps and sometimes it takes me 10 
mins just to get on the fwy & 25 mins to get to Target or the marketplace on the other side of the fwy 
because of the traffic and congestion. 
 
Best, Lorena Santa 
Sent from my iPhone 
 



From: Margaret Santamaria
To: City Clerk Group
Subject: Development on Colusa and Del Norte
Date: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 5:06:23 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,

I live at 49 Colusa Ave and iam opposed to the development proposal for the vacant land across the street. The area
has high traffic as is with the freeway off-ramp and high school as is with the narrow street it is often hard to back
out of the driveway already. The amount of congestion this would cause as this is the only route to that area. Thank
you for taking the time to read the above.

-Margaret santamaria
Sent from my iPhone

mailto:msantamaria805@yahoo.com
mailto:cityclerkgroup@cityofgoleta.org


From: Conrad Metzenberg
To: City Clerk Group
Subject: public comment/speaking D.3 23-586 C.
Date: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 5:13:54 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good evening,
I request permission to address the Council regarding D.3 23-586 Paragraph C.
I strongly advise against the rezoning and development of 449 and 469 Kellog.  This property
is home to A-AA Santa Barbara RV Storage - DBA El Toro Holdings, LLC.  This is one of
the few remaining properties in SB Goleta area to store a boat, RV, trailer, or vehicle for
recreational or commercial use.  Eliminating this facility would greatly impact a number of
people who would have no other place to put their equipment.  The next closest options with
availability are in Ventura or Lompoc.  Taking this facility away would
disproportionately impact the working class.   

I don't see a zoom link to speak at.
Conrad M. Metzenberg
805.705.6202
cmetzenberg@gmail.com

mailto:cmetzenberg@gmail.com
mailto:cityclerkgroup@cityofgoleta.org
mailto:cmetzenberg@gmail.com


From: Lee DeAnda
To: City Clerk Group
Subject: 7264 Calle Real (Kenwood Village - APN 077-130-006) -Opposed to rezoning for high density housing
Date: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 5:49:53 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello City Council Members,
I am writing to express my strong objection to allowing high density housing at 7264 Calle
Real (Kenwood Village - APN 077-130-006).

Reasons:
Safety - Calle Real is single lane in each direction and cars constantly pass, slower cars and
cars turning, by encroaching on the opposite side of the road which is the lane that is the
oncoming traffic. This is a danger for cars, cyclists, and pedestrian traffic.

Additional Safety Concern: There is a possibility that the property might be used for a
retirement facility.  I used to live next to Friendship Manor in Isla Vista and there would be
ambulances called there very often, sometimes multiple times a day and all hours of the day
and night.  The ambulance would park in the lane of traffic and since it was a two lane in each
direction there was still a lane for cars to pass.  Such would not be the case on Calle Real
further creating an unsafe situation. 

Too much Congestion at the Storke overpass already, please do not add to the problem by
bringing high density housing to a single family residential neighborhood. 

Lower property values: The neighborhood is single residential housing and it needs to stay
that way.  It will lower the property value for nearby properties if a massive multiple acre high
density housing project is allowed to be developed.

Better use of the subject property would be to use it as a launch pad for a bicycle and
pedestrian freeway overpass.  This was discussed many years ago and it would greatly
benefit the neighborhood and be beneficial for the environment as many of us would be able to
bike or walk to the Costco, Camino Real Shopping Center and the Albertson's shopping center
and the Smart and Final shopping center.

Friendship Manor: There are many students who volunteer there and being located in Isla
Vista, the students can walk or bike there and volunteer their time.  Very few students are
going to come to 7246 Calle Real to volunteer their time since it is much further away and that
would lower the quality of life for the residents of Friendship Manor.

I am also concerned about the potential increase in drug use and crime that is often
associated with high density housing.  I grew up in Los Angeles and moved to Goleta to get
away from that type of living so please do not bring high density housing to the single family
residential community of El Encanto Heights. It does not belong here!

Thank you,
Lee DeAnda

mailto:mr.lee.deanda@gmail.com
mailto:cityclerkgroup@cityofgoleta.org
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